10

11

12

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Further, Defendant American Vantage Brownstone LLC (AVB) signed the Term Sheet
(see Exhibit 1 to the Complaint). The signature block for AVB is signed by Defendant Tassinari
as its chairman.

Defendants managed, lead, acted on behalf of and owned the Brownstone Plaintiffs and
therefore, for purposes of privity, their interests and motivations were and are perfectly aligned.
Indeed, it is difficult to conceive a way in which they were not privies to the Brownstone
Plaintiffs. After all, Tassinari signed the contract or Term Sheet in his capacity as chairman of
AVB and on behalf of AVB the owner of Brownstone Gold Town, LLC. See Bloom v
Claimetrics Management, 2011 U.S. Dist. Lexis. 75841 (Nev. 2011) (Since defendants in
second case were managing agents, members and owners of defendant limited liability company
in first case, they were privies for purposes of claim preclusion.)

b. The Order of Dismissal With Prejudice in the First Case is Valid.

As to the second factor, there can be no question that the Order of Dismissal of Action
with Prejudice (the “Order of Dismissal”) filed in the First Case is valid. The Order of
Dismissal was submitted by and signed by counsel for Robert Mendenhall and Sunridge
Corporation, the Defendants in the First Case and the Plaintiffs in the instant case, the Order of
Dismissal was signed by District Court Judge Ronald J. Israel and filed in the First Case, and
the Order of Dismissal specifically provides in part that: “...the above entitled action BE AND
IS HEREBY DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE, FULLY DISCHARGED AND
RELEASED, with respect to any and all claims as alleged, or that could have been alleged in
this action by ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, SUNRIDGE CORPORATION...” (Emphasis in
original).

Plaintiff’s Opposition does not dispute the validity of the Order of Dismissal.

REPLY RE MOTION TO DISMISS - 8
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c. Plaintiff’s Claims Herein, or Any Part of Them, Were or Could Have
Been Brought in the First Case.
Claim preclusion applies to prevent a second suit based on all grounds of recovery that
were or could have been brought in the first suit. Five Star Capital v Ruby, 108 Nev. 149.
Mendenhall’s Motion to Amend in the First Case seeking to assert the same claims now
brought in the case at bar, clearly demonstrates that the claims in this case could have been
brought in the First Case.
Plaintiff’s Opposition incorrectly argues that there is some requirement that the second
suit arise from the “same cause of action” as the first suit in order for claim preclusion to apply.
The same argument was presented to the Court in Five Star Capital and rejected. The
Nevada Supreme Court in Five Star Capital explained in part as follows:
“Next, Five Star's argument that claim preclusion cannot apply because

the second suit included an_additional claim for breach of contract damages is

erroneous. As explained above, claim preclusion applies to prevent a second suit

based on all grounds of recovery that were or could have been brought in the

first suit.” (Emphasis Supplied)

Despite the undisputed fact the Plaintiffs actually attempted to bring the same claims
asserted in this Second Case in the First Case by filing Mendenhall’s Motion to Amend in the
First Case, Plaintiffs now claim they could not have brought their claims in the First Case
because Plaintiffs’ argue that Mendenhall could not have been aware that Mr. Tassinari signed
the Undisputed Term Sheet in the Other Investor(s) signature block. However, Plaintiff’s

argument is not supported by Mendenhall’s own admissions (See above).

REPLY RE MOTION TO DISMISS - 9
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Contrary to the assertions in Plaintiff’s Opposition, Mendenhall admits: a) that
Mendenhall signed the Term Sheet first when no other signatures were present; and b) that on
December 5, 2007 Mendenhall had possession the Undisputed Term Sheet. The Undisputed
Term Sheet plainly shows that Ronald Tassinari signed the Undisputed Term Sheet both on
behalf of American Vantage Brownstone, LLC and for Other Investor(s).

Mendenhall’s admission that he was in possession of the Undisputed Term Sheet since
December 5, 2007 irrefutably demonstrates that Plaintiffs discovered, or should have
discovered, that Mr. Tassinari signed the Undisputed Term Sheet in the Other Investor(s)
signature block.

There is no question that claims Plaintiff are asserting in this action could have been
brought in the First Case.

Plaintiff incorrectly argues that claim preclusion only applies to compulsory
counterclaims under NRCP 13(a). However, there simply is no such requirement under Nevada
law as set out by the Nevada Supreme Court in Five Star Capital Corp v Ruby, 124 Nev. 1048,
194 P3d 709, 713 (2008).

Plaintiff’s argument that Plaintiff was somehow precluded by NRCP 11 from asserting
in current claims in the First Case is without merit. Plaintiff did in fact attempt to assert the
same claims in the First Case through the Motion to Amend.

Finally, Plaintiff incorrectly argues that there is an equitable prong to the standard for
claim preclusion set out in Five Star Capital. There simply is no such prong in the Five Star
Capital standard. In fact the Court in Five Star Capital specifically rejected an equitable public

policy argument.
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Further, the Order of Dismissal by its express terms extends to claims which could have
been alleged by Plaintiffs herein in pertinent part as follows:

“...the above entitled action BE AND IS HEREBY DISMISSED WITH

PREJUDICE, FULLY DISCHARGED AND RELEASED, with respect to any

and all claims as alleged, or _that could have been alleged in_this_action by

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, BROWNSTONE

GOLD TOWN, LLC and BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN CV, LLC, including

but not limited to, those asserted in the Complaint, as well as any related or

potential claims that could be asserted in this action against one another,...”

(Emphasis Supplied).

The August 29, 2014 Order of Dismissal specifically dismissed with prejudice any and
all claims that could have been alleged in the First Case, including any related or potential
claims that could be asserted. The Order of Dismissal was entered well after the Motion to
Amend filed by Mendenhall on July 21, 2014. Plaintiff’s claims in this action, which Plaintiff
attempted to assert through the Motion to Amend is absolutely barred by the express terms of
the Order of Dismissal.

Since all three requirements for claim preclusion are met, this action must be dismissed.
/1
"

1!
I
"
1
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CONCLUSION
The Defendants in this case were officers and managing agents and members of the
Plaintiffs in the First Case, Brownstone Gold Town, LLC and Brownstone Gold Town CV,
LLC. The Defendants herein were and are privies of the Brownstone Plaintiffs in the First
Action. The Order of Dismissal of Action with Prejudice filed in the First Case is valid. The
claims in this case could have been brought in the First Case. Therefore this action is barred and

must be dismissed.
DATED this_ /07 day of March, 2015.

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHARTERED

— ==
HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar no. 1252
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada §9101
Tel. No.: (702) 382-6700
Fax No.: (702) 384-0715
Email: harryv@marquislaw.net
Attorney for Defendants

In Association with:

JAMES J. LEE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 01909

Legal Offices of James J Lee
2620 Regatta Drive, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
Telephone (702) 664-6545
Email: jamesizleelawonline.com
Attorney for Defendants
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

o
I certify that on the [D/day of March, 2015, I served a true copy of the above and
foregoing Reply in Support of Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss herein electronically via the

Court’s ECF system upon all parties listed on the electronic service list, as follows:

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Wade B. Gochnour, Esq.

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 257-1483

Facsimile: (702) 567-1568

Email: grmteh2law.com

Email: wheh2law.com

Attorneys for Defendants

An efaployee of
HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD
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FROM : RFG GAMING & HOSPITALITY,LLC FHONE NO. : 7823466442 Dec. ©5 2087 89:46AM P1

AMERICAN VANTAGE FROWNSTO
Phone: (702) 227-9800 — Fex: (702) 227-8505

MELL

i i A

nieen

P.0. Box 51820, Les Vegus, NV 89180

Projnct Desssiption:

ip.of the
Gonmany:

CQNFBJENI’ML

CARSON VALLEY CASING FPROJECT
TERM SHEET

This tarw dhost thall serve pg an cutline of the basis business femms wmd
candidons wpon which Brownstose GoldTown, LLC (“Brownstonoe
GoldTown'); a subeidlory of Americat Vanizge Brownstone, LIC
(AVE", Robert L. Mendanhall, PhD. of an antity whollycvmed by
Mr. Mendenbalt (“Mandenhnll", and other potential equity itrvestor(s)
{five “Other Tnvestor(sy?), will asgtire membership (rforests i the
Novade listed Hablity soapany, Brewostane GoldTown CV, LLC (the
“Compay™ for the primary putpere of cotstrucing, owning sud
operativg 2 hotel casino to be Incated i Cerson Valley, Danglas County,
Nevadte {the “Project*).

GoldTown Hotel and Casino Resort, to be comstrueted 61 45 asres, wiih
approkimataly 200 hatel rocms and suitor, 93,000+ pqudre fest of casiho
spane, fhiras full sevvive vestauranw, $,0000 squars faet of convenilon
spee e mwlipls retadl omtlets, The project site 35 loceted within o fiow
wiles of Cuxson City end Lake Tahse, Nevade and forty-Gve minutes
from Rono, Wevada.

“The Project alse wludes: the exclusive option o purchase an adjoining
A00-acre, 7,008 vard, par 72, championship golf course (“Sumridge Golf
Club™ with po abop.  The option fo purchase Sunridge Golf Club
expiras o Jenvary- 11, 2008,

The Projest membership lotareets (the “Mambership Intaraste®) will ba
allocated baged oo the following:

® For contribudon of the 46-ume project slte, valued
$15,000,000,00, Mendenhell will reozlve & 27.0% Mamberhin
Tnterest. The ecreage Wil ba sopivibuted o fil on or bofore the
optinn expitation dute of Dieimber 27, 2007 or as wutnally agresd
betwesn Brownsterie GuldTown snd Mendenhall,

FILE MAME! Hold Towy tera shost AWM s-odied to R Mandertafl 12 4 07.doa
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FROM &

RFG GAMING & HOSPITALITY,LLC PHONE NO. @ 7823466442 Dec, B5 2887 B9:47AM P2

Bravmatane GoldTown, LLC
Carson Valley Caginn Sroject
Terrn Shevt

Page Tws

= 1tis expuoted that the Other Tnvestor{s} will contribute $7,000,806.00
U.S. dallars for a 12,6% Membership Inteceat,

W Brownstwe GoldTown will contribute $1,500,000.00 TU.8. dollars
far 2 2.7% Membeaship Tntsrest

* The option to purshase Sunridge Golf Club provides st of the
disaretion of Brownstone GoldTown:

o ‘The i) Purchase Price of $2,500,400,00 T1.8, dollwrs;
" e

o A Puchsse Price of $1,000,000.00 U 8. ples assumpilon
of the golf osr! Ioan, in = mmount not ty =xesad
B150,000.00, and oyt sqully perrentage share of the
Coropany o the same manmer snd = a5 the other

wquity investers of the Campeny. The equity peresiitans
ghare {2 cueremtly equal foa 2,78 Messbarshis lateroct,

IE Brownstone GoldTown elects to puxdligse the Buntidgs Golf
Course Sar the tora] Purchase Brics of $2,500,000.00, the related
2795 Mombervhip Interess will be allocwied ona pro e basis fo
Memdeshall, the Oftimy Invéstor(s) and Brownstons GoldTow,

© Tha above wontribions are collectively defined ax the “Projact
Contributions.”

B Brownstome ColiTown will refein fie remsining Membersiip
Tubarest a6 Its foundsy,

The total Mumbership nterests may be impacted if there is an incresse in
the cnsrent Hrvestment banking equity requistacrt of $25,000,000.00.

Allseation of Cesing
Ang Bettl] Boslnens
Ceh Floswss The Opsrating Agreamunt will provide for gquartsly digtelbntion, if ead

when mvallable, of the Cam;my s Cosing tash flow, after peyment of

aperting expenses (noluding o development fee of 3.09% of the total
development cest$ and an aunual managément fer of $1,000,000.00),
senfor delt eovemunty mud any feduled zeserves, i the follewing
toanng:

v Fifiypercent (5026) o the pro vawa ropayment of the Projecs
Contzibritions watll, together with the distibutions fam the Retatl

Business cosh faw (sea below), the Ml value of the Profest
Cogitribntions Is repaid. Tilstelisions from the Corapainy's Craing

CONPIDENITAL FILBNAME, Gold Town_teews theet AMOY extisilad to R Mirodaxhel] |2 040740t ﬂ/(/
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FROM : RFG GAMING & HOSPITALITY,LLC PHONE NO. : 7823466442
SRS N JUUT O finA

Browastots SoldTown, LLO
Creem Vallay Casing Breject

Tarm Sheet
Pege Thres

CONFIERNTIAL

cash Bow will first setiody &0 pro fRiE tepayment of e Projent
Contributions, with repayraent inforest terms based on the higher of
90Dy LIBOR (Londan Inerbank Offered Rate) ut the dato of the
contributinn or s anansl tate of 6%,

n  Remaining 5095 to bs allocated based opunr the percentege of
Membership Interests held by cach member in the Company,

The Operating Agresment will also provide for manthly distributions of
the Clotpany’s Retd] Businiess cush fow, if end when availsble, after
pevment of ppureting expenses (uclnding development and mettngestient
faes), sentor debt covepants and any required reserves, in tha fsllowing
fmEmner;

v Seveatyvperosat (P09 to the pro min yepayment of the Projeot
Comributions wmd], ropether with the distbetions fom the
Conars”s Cesino odsh flow (a8 qiseussed nbova), the fitll valas of
the Prmjeet Contibulions is' repeld.  Distrlbotone fiom the
Company’s Retafl Eueiness cash How will St saviefy the pro rete
repayzostt of the Project Comiributions, with repayment interast
terms based ot the Hgher of 90-Day LIBOR (Lopdon rmrdbank
Offered Rate) et the date of the contribintion ooty suruel xds of 636,

% Bemoiiing 30% to be allocsied besed upon fhe percetage of
Mewmbership Duterents lield by each member in the Company,

The Operating Agreement sball prevuida th, upon the repayment of the
fall-value of the Rematning Membership Inferusts, the Ceavpany’s
Cupino aud. Retal] Business cash Sowg will be digiributed secondlag 1o
the pereantage af Matubzrchly Totarests held by each member in the
Company,

I the event e refforooing o the Projeot is approved by the Company,
atter payment of the sendor debt, sny exensy capital realized from the
zefluancing shall be nppHed, sofieetlvely determined on 2 pro nata basls
from cepltel comtribitinus, in the Sollowing manver to: (3) the Other
luvestor(s), Mendenlioll, Brownstons GoldTown, end. & applicable, the
Suntidee. Golf Club seller, 10 the extent Hizh the Project Contribidons
have ot boas repeid from e diptributions of Cpsine vash flyw aud
Reipll Busiess eash flovy med (L) dighibuted seeording io the
pexpencnge of Membership Intarests held by esch member in the

‘

JE NAME: Gold Towm frm sheet, AMM e-tellzd tp R Memdeatall 12 04 07.dos

£ Jg

{

MENO00672
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FROM : RFG GAMING & HDSPITALITY,LLC PHONE NO. @ 7823466442 DFE.U @B 2®|®? JZ‘E):S:LQN P2

Byl P RN

Browastons GoldTovwn, LI

Cizson Valley Crsino Prajest

Term Sheet

Page Four

Licansing Tha Project owners Wi be requinst 1o satisfuotorily obtein & Nevads

peming loanse, Costs nssosinted with obiaining @ Nevada gasiing
lireatse for & divestor, employee or sonsultant direstly axsooiated with the
dsveloptment or mpoagonient of the Froject are the only licensiog costs

that will bs bore by the Projest.
Exchusivity: Nosegxelusive amrangemsnt,
ZTermination of
ALTOOTIRRL The Term Sheet may be terminated i not exeswted by the parties st ar
bafire .
AR AR
|
!
i
!
i
i
i
§
1
CONFIDENTIAL FILE RAWE: Geld Tawn_yana slitiet, AWM e-malled to B Manderkall 2 64 07.doc /
MENO00673
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FROM R’FG GQMII\ju & IJ—iPSDINJ'R’L‘.ITY yLLC PHONE NO. @ 7823466442 : Dec. U@S 2@@? 89:51AM P1
v 70 5 o, G20

Brownstome GaldTown, LLC
Carsens Valley Coslns Brajost
Term Shoet

Page Five

IN WHNESS WHEDEOF, the partles hove dgtesd tpon the sbbwve bems and
conditions of fhis Term Sheet, This Term Shost conssnt may be exéoused by ous or sioes of the
signers heteto fn any tvmbor of seperats sowntrepart:, ahd ol podl aonsteats Taken topether
shnll be desmed in consttute oe xnd e goxs dovtroweat, Fxecytion of this Term Shest wnd
delivery thereof by faosimile: or emzil trmsmission shell b safficiant for all purposes and shall bo
binding wpon sy perty who #o axscutes,

Disted: /f?]%/éz L2007

By : ,
Name: Robert F, Grose
Title: Clief Executive Offieer

Kobert L, Mendeniull, PRI, or Osher

e
A8]

|
Title %
!

C-‘nmymr Name:

‘.._. .......-. —

CONTIDENTIAL, FILENAME: Gold Town_emmateer ANM e maiied o R Mendmbell 13 0440400 7

MEN00674
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FRCM ¢ RFG GAMING & HOSPITALITY,LLC PHONE MO, : 7823466442 Dec. @5 2887 93:48AM P1

AMERICAN VANTACE BROWNSTONE, LLC +stmtavizr or suzwows ianmios caurinss

Fhome: (702) 227-9830 — Fex: (163) 3278555 R
P.0. Box 81920, Les Vegas, NV 89180

CARSON VALLEY CASINO PROJECT
TERM SHEET

Treacton: This term shect dhali serve as aa duthine ¢f the basie business terms and
candittans upen which Brownstose GoldTown, LLC (“Brownswone
GoldTown™), & subsidlery of Americen Vantage Brownstonme, LLC
(“AVBY), Robert L. Mendarhall, PhIL or an eatity wholly-evwaed by
Mr. Mendenball (“Manéenhsli"), and other potential equity irvestor(s)
{the “Other Tovestor(sy”), will sequire membership mrterssts in the
Nevads lirsited Babllity coapacy, Browmstane GoldTown CV, LLC (the
“Comptkegy™) for the primary putpose of conswuctlng, owning sod
cperating = hotel casing 1o be Iocated In Caryon Valley, Daugias County,

Nevada (the “Project).
Projsct Descaivtion:  GoldTown Hotel and Casino Resor, to e omsiratted on 46 acres, with

approxitiarely 300 Rotel rocms and sedtsq, 93,000+ square feet of casig
spacz, three full cervice festauranrs, 8,000 square feet of conventlon
spaca and mulple retall owlets, The project sits is located within a fow
wiles of Carson City end Lake Taho, Novade and Sorly-five minutes
from Reno, Nevada,

The Project also ineludes the exclusive option to prrchase 2 adjoining
300-asTe, 7,000 yasd, par 72, shampioniship golf course ("Sunridge Golf
Club™) with mo shop. The option to purshase Swnridge Gelf Chub
exoires or. Januazy 11, 2008,

Cogmmy: Tae Project membership interests (ke “Membership Interaats”) will be !
: allocated besad on the foliowing: :
v For contribution of the 46-awe project slte, valusd a
$15,000,000,00, Mondennall will recalve 2 27.0% Membarthip
Taterest. The acreage wiil ba contributed i full on or before the
opticn expiration date of December 27, 2007 or as mutnally agreed
betwesn Browastore GoldTown and Mendanhall,

#

CONFIDENTIAL FILE NAME: Gold Town, forg short_AMM y-ated 0 R Mandentiall (30 07.0¢ 1
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FROM =

7

RFG GAMING & HOSPITALITY,LLC PHOME NO. : 7823466142 Dec. @5 2@07 89:47AM F

i

Reawaetone GoldTown, LLC
Crrscr. Valley Caslro Project
Term Saeet

Pige Two

« 1t is expooted that the Other Investor(s) will centribute $7,000,000.60
U.S. dobars for & 12.6% Membership Interest,

" Brewestine GoldTown will contribete 31,500,000.00 U.S. dollars
for 3 2.7% Membezship Interest.

¢ The option w purchase Suaridge Golf Club prevides that, st the
diseretion of Brownstone GoldTown:

o The totad Purchase Price of §2,500,000.00 U.S, dollnrs;
a,

o A Purchsse Prics of $1,000,000.00 U5, pins assumpdon
; of the golf carl loan, in en amoynt mot 1 exeead
2130,000.00, and o equity percentuge share of the
Compary in the sams mannet and terms ag the other
oquity investors of the Compeny. The equity percentage
chare {5 currently squal 10 3 2.7% Memberchip Itterect,

If Bronnstone GoldTown elects w purchese tie Susridge Golf
Caurse for the towal Purchase Prics of $2,500,000.00, the relaed
2.7% Memberyhip Interest will be allocated oc a pra wufa basis ta
Mendenhall, ths Other Investor(s) and Brownstone GoldTown,

v The above conmidutions are colkstively defined ar the “Project
Contribatrons.”

¥ Brownstone GoldTown will retdn the remaining Mewmpership
Imierest as its foundae,

The twtal Mexbership Interests may be impacted if there is aa increese in i
’ the surrent investment benking squity requirsracat of $25,000,000.00.
Aboeation of Casino
Azd Retal] Busipess
Cush Flows: The Operating Agresment will provide far quarterly distibution, if end
whes evallable, of the Company's Cusine cash flow, after payment of
aperting expenses (inclsding a develspment fee of 3.0% of the tota
development cosfs and an annusl managemest fee of §1,500,000.06),

senfor debt covenanw and any requirad rererves, i the following
toannsr

¢ Fifty-peacent (50%) to the pro mum repaymenmi of the Projece
Confributions watil togsther with the dismibutions from the Retal!
Business cash flow (gec below), the full valoe of the Project
Conibutions {s repaid. Distriautions frowm the Coxpanyv?s Casino

CONFIDENTIAL FIE NAMG: Crold Taan_term shees AN eeesided tp & Meaderball 1204 07.doc /’/(/
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FROM @ RFC GAMING 2 HC‘S'F’ITF-LITY.LLC PHONE NO. : 7823456442 Dec. @5 2BB7 3S:51aM P3
PR AN IENi AT R CA . -

- '

Browastone GoldTown, LLC
Qrrson Valley Casine Prajset

Term Sheet
Page Threa

CONFIDENTIAL

eash Bow will frst setinfy the pro iRt3 topayment of the Prgjsat
Contributions, with repayment interest terme based on the higher of
90.Dry LIBOR. (London Inerbank Offersd Rate) ax the dats of the
cantribution or s annusl rate of 6%. .

»  Reoaipiug $0% 1o be allocated based upon the percemmge of
NMembership Interess held by each member in the Campany,

The Operating Agree-nent will also provide for manthly distributiong of
the Company's Retall Rusiness cash flow, if and when availeble, afier
peyment of operating expevses (including development ad manngersent
fees), senior debt covenants and aty recjudred roserves, in the follswing
manner:

®  Seventyspercsat (70%) 1o the pro mta repayment of the Project
Conmibutions wntll, mgether with fhe distibetichs fom e
Compatts”s Casino oash fow (85 distussed above), the fitll value of
the Project Contributiems is repald, Distributons from the
Company's Rezail Buginess cach flow will frst baizfy the pro rata
tepaysosot of the Project Cantributions, with tepayment intersst
terms based ¢o the igher of 50-Day LIBOR (London jowrbank
Offered Kate] st Gso dats of the contribirtion or &1 sanual nite of 6%,

*  Remairieg 30% o ba allocared besed upon the percentage of
Membership Interests hald by each wember in the Company.

The Operating Agreement shall provids thes, upon the tepayment of the
full - value of the Remalning Membership Eterasts, the Corepany’s
Casino end Retnil Business cash Eaws will be distributad according ro
the percetmiga of Mambarship [nwrests held by each member in the

Company.

In tho event e refinancing of the Project is approved by ths Company,
after psymant of the sepior debl, any enssss capital realized from the
refitanoing shall be eppHed, oollectively determined or 2 pro rata basis
from cepitel contributions, o the following mzuper to: () the Other
Investor(s), Meadenhiall, Brownstone GoldTown, sxd es gpplicable, toe
Sunrides Golf Club seller, to fhe extent that the Project Contribudions
have not been wapeid from the disiributions of Casino cash flow and
Recall Bosiness cash flowy apd (L) disdbwed aecoding to fhe
pezcentage of Membership Interests held by each member in the

g

FIUE NAME: Cold Tom_tort sheet AMM ooptites tn R Mieaoratey 13 04 07.¢os
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FROM @ RFG GAMIMG & HOSPITALITY,LLC PHOME MO. : 7823486442 De::.g @5 2B@7 8S:51am P2
N N ’ we e : e 1. .

Browastone GoldTown, LiC

Carson Valloy Casino Project

Terz Shest

Page Four

Liesnsimg The Project owaers will be required 10 satisfactorily obtain 2 Nevuda

gaming lictmse, Costs associated wihth obwining 3 Nevada gerning
licenss for a disector, eruployee or consultant directly associated with the
development or managoment of the Projest arc the oaly licensing costs
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partles have agreed vpon the above trms and
conditions of this Term Sheet. This Term Shoet consenr may be executed By sne or Mora of the
signers hereto in eny mumbee of separate covterparis, and 211 such coutrespxits taken together
dafl be deemed o constitube one and the 2ema luetiupent., Exscution of this Term Sheat and
dulivery thereof by fassimnile or exail transmission shall be safficient for all purposes and shall be
bindiog vpon sy party who so ecseitss,

/; // /
Dated; SE L, 20T .
7/ o \
. dmerican Yanioge Brownstone, LLC |
By ) S
Name: RooaldJ, Tassiean *
Titler Cheitmt :

0 RFG GAMING & HOSF’]TF}\! T, L PHOME MO, : 7823466442 Dec. B85 287 33:518n B
o P A T e L i) 3

‘ Bmw% e -
|
A
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Title:
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Location : District Court Civil/Criminal

Robert Mendenhall, Plaintiff(s) vs. Ronald Tassinari, Defendant

(s)

REGISTER OF ACTIONS
Cask No. A-14-708281-C

Case Type: Other Tort
Date Filed: 10/08/2014
Location: Department 32
Cross-Reference Case A708281
Number:
Supreme Court No.: 68053

(2723772077477 77X77:4%7¢)

PARTY INFORMATION

Defendant

Plaintiff

Plaintiff

Lead Attorneys

Tassinari, Ronald James John Lee
Retained
702-382-4044(W)

Mendenhall, Robert L Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
702-257-1483(W)

Sunridge Corporation Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
702-257-1483(W)

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

03/17/2015

Motion to Dismiss (9:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Bare, Rob)
Defendant's Motion to Dismiss

Minutes
02/24/2015 9:00 AM

03/17/2015 9:00 AM

- Court presented an overview and procedural history of the
case, noting the Five Star Capital case regarding claim
preclusion. Colloquy regarding a previous case with like claims
before Judge Israel that was dismissed. Arguments by Mr.
Marquis in support of Defendant's Motion to Dismiss, stating
the claims in this case could have been brought in the previous
case before Judge Israel. Opposition argued by Mr. Young
alleging different circumstances in this case, noting the offer of
judgment timeline in the previous case. Following further
arguments by counsel distinguishing the two cases, COURT
ORDERED, matter taken UNDER ADVISEMENT; written
Order TO ISSUE.

Parties Present
Return to Register of Actions
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Electronically Filed
03/08/2016 09:54:25 AM

TRAN Qf’%« & E
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

*x Kk Kk Kk %

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, SUNRIDGE
CORPORATION, CASE NO. A-14-708281
Plaintiffs,

DEPT. NO. XXXIT

RONALD TASSINARI, AMERICAN
VANTAGE BROWNSTONE, LLC,

)
)
)
)
)
vs. )
)
) Transcript of Proceedings
)
)
)

Defendants.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ROB BARE, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS

TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2015

APPEARANCES :
For the Plaintiffs: JAY YOUNG, ESQ.
GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESOQ.
For the Defendants: HARRY P. MARQUIS, ESQ.
RECORDED BY: CARRIE HANSEN, DISTRICT COURT
TRANSCRIBED BY: KRISTEN LUNKWITZ

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.
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TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2015 AT 9:17 A.M.

THE LAW CLERK: Case number A708281.

THE COURT: What about this one?

[Colloguy between the Law Clerk and the Court]

THE COURT: I apologize for this, but I'm going to
call you guys next because I --

MR. MARQUIS: Oh, okay.

THE COURT: He -- my law clerk didn’t know that
but it’s going to take -- yours i1s going to take a little
longer.

MR. MARQUIS: All right. Thank you.

THE COURT: And so the other one is going to be a
little guicker. Sorry about that. Let’s go ahead and call
this one.

[Case trailed at 9:18 a.m.]
[Proceeding resumed at 9:24 a.m.]

THE LAW CLERK: Case number A708281.

MR. MARQUIS: Good morning, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Good morning.

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: Good morning, Your Honor.

MR. YOUNG: Good morning. Jay Young and Gwen
Rutar Mullins on behalf of the plaintiff.

MR. MARQUIS: Harry Marquis on behalf of the

defendants and I have Mr. Tassinari with me as well.
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THE COURT: All right. Welcome, have a seat and
relax everyone. Now, you heard that I typically like to go
over the factual predicate and sometimes also let everybody
know what I think the most relevant legal analysis might
just be going into these hearings. If I were to do that in
this case, to a level of specificity that you all know, it
would take gquite a while because there’s a pretty storied
procedural history here. So, rather than going through it
all and just know I’ve read it and outlined it, I'm going
to give a more summary version. You’re welcome to argue or
tell me things from the factual scenario that I don’t
mention now. But just know I have it all here, outlined,
pretty much everything from the year 2006 on, having to do
with the underlying factual predicate.

So, there’s that. But in any event, the case that
we have in our court in -- as a theory, involves a fraud
claim. Of course, what we have i1s that Judge Ron Israel
had a case that i1t’s alleged, basically, would now act as a
preclusive case, a claim preclusion under the Five Star
Capital case where I think that’s really where the Nevada
Supreme Court took the opportunity to change Nevada
jurisprudence from what it used to be in the past. You
know, a few of us don’t have hair in the room and it used
to be a thing called res judicata when we did have hair.

And the Court took an opportunity in our lifetimes to say:
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Wait a second, there’s claim preclusion, there's issue
preclusion. And they laid it all out.

The mainline case, of course, 1s this Five Star
case. It talks about whether the parties or their privies
are the same. The privy issues, I think, becomes relevant
in our case, whether the final judgment’s valid. I don’t
think we have a dispute as to the Israel judgment being a
valid one. And whether the subsequent actions based upon
the same claims or any part of them that could have been
brought in the first case and I think that’s a big issue in
the argument today as to whether all that -- you know, all
the claims could have been brought.

But again, without getting into the whole storied
factual predicate, it seemed like what happened was --
because I’ve got to look at what happened in the Ron Israel
case and compare it to what I now have here to the best of
my ability. In other words, what I'm saying to you all,
the note I made reading through all this is: Is our --
maybe a better way to say it is -- and if I'm wrong about
this just tell me, but this is how I conceptualize the
thing so you guys can argue. Is our case, 1if you look at
the four corners of it, is it a compulsory or permissive
counterclaim that could have been brought, really, in the
Israel case? Because the claim preclusion area of law does

not bar a party from suing independently if it maybe were a
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permissive counterclaim. That’s from the Executive
Management Limited Ticor Title case, Nevada Supreme Court
from 798. Gives me some guidance on that. It -- also,
Rule 13 talks about the idea that:

A pleading shall state as a counterclaim any claim
which at the time of serving the pleading or the
pleader has against any opposing party, if it arises
out of the transaction or occurrence as the subject
matter of the opposing party’s claim.

Essentially, I have to look at, again, what we
have here and ask: Could it or should it have been brought
in the Judge Israel case or was 1t even fairly encompassed
in the case, which is another sort of thought because if
you look at the court procedure, and correct me if I'm
wrong, but there was a -- essentially, a settlement. It
was a settlement in the Israel case. Right?

MR. MARQUIS: Correct.

THE COURT: And then after all that --

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: It was an offer of judgment.

THE COURT: Pardon me?

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: Acceptance of offer of
judgment, so --

THE COURT: Yeah. I said this was an offer of
judgment.

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: Right.
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THE COURT: And so the question became, it seemed
like that the plaintiffs which were known in the Israel
case say as the Brownstone plaintiffs, they filed Motion to
Clarify Enforced Terms of Mendenhall’s Offer of Judgment.
And in his wisdom, Judge Israel, in August of 2014 as I
understand it, heard that Motion to Amend, part of a Motion
to Amend, I guess, and said that he wouldn’t prohibit them
from filing another lawsuit and right after that, within
about 10 days, Judge Israel entered an Order of Dismissal
of Action with Prejudice and, in that, indicated the
standard language but specific language that:

The above action be and is hereby dismissed with
prejudice fully discharged and released with respect to
any and all claims as alleged.

And then it says: Or that could have been alleged,
consistent with this idea of probably a compulsory
counterclaim. It could have been alleged in this action by
Robert Mendenhall, Sunrise Corporation, blah, blah, blah.

And so I know that Mr. Marquis, in part, your
argument is: Well, that language from the Judge Israel
Order in conjunction with the facts here should lead a
Court to conclude that the instant fraud allegations could
have been alleged by Mendenhall in the other action. I
don’t know if you’re also going as far as to say: Hey

look, in any event, it was encompassed in the acceptance of
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the offer of Jjudgment anyway.

And that gets us to the last part, maybe the only
part of the factual predicate that seems most relevant. I
know that the idea was: Well, there was this deposition
that occurred and it was, at that time, plaintiffs say that
Mr. Tassinari --

MR. MARQUIS: Tassinari, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Tassinari. Okay. They -- plaintiffs
say that as far as Mr. Tassinari’s alleged fraudulent acts,
they didn’t know that until his deposition. And I think
that’s the main part of an argument that: Well, wait a
second, the current cause of action for fraud could not
have been fairly encompassed or really brought up in the
Israel case.

And, so, it might be helpful to me if you both
kind of talked about the time element of when this
deposition occurred as compared to everything that happened
in Israel case and that sort of thing. I think that might
be the -- at least something to talk about.

And the last part of it, I share stuff with

people. Not -- doesn’t mean I'm right in this stage of a
hearing, but I share stuff. It jJust -- it did seem to me
and I'm not -- I don’t mean this with any disrespect to the

plaintiffs’ side, but I looked at the Offer of Judgment. I

looked at the term sheet that I have outlined here.
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Anyway, 1it’s at least questionable in my mind what was
going on here. In other words, again no disrespect, but an
argument, sort of a thought came to mind, not even an
argument, that: Okay, Mendenhall makes an Offer of
Judgment. It’s used in another District Court department
to consummate sort of a finalization of a case and is it
that Mendenhall is really just trying to get out of it is a
question? I mean, 1s what I have to, at least in fairness,
bring up.

So, in any event, i1it’s a defense motion. Mr.
Marquis.

MR. MARQUIS: Thank you, Your Honor. You're
right, this case is determined by the Five Star Capital
case and in the factual scenario that you laid out, I’'d ask
you to also be aware that they did file a Motion to Amend,
that they did file a Motion to Amend and that I attached
that motion and their Proposed Amended Complaint.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MARQUIS: And it contained all these claims.
So, when they say that that could not possibly have been
brought in that case, well, not only could it have been
brought in the case, but they tried to bring it in the
case.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MARQUIS: Now that motion wasn’t ruled upon
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because the case was settled before that, but let me go
through the factors. Okay. Were these two parties,
American Vantage Brownstone, LLC, and Ronald Tassinari,
were they privies of the plaintiffs in the first case?
Well I submit obviously they are, Your Honor. Both signed
the term sheet. And if you look at the term sheet, the --
it’s Exhibit F to my -- our Reply and specifically on page
-— there’s Mendenhall bates number 00674.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MARQUIS: You can see the signatures. You can
see the two signatures. You can see the --

THE COURT: Yeah. I know. We do have that
outlined here.

MR. MARQUIS: Yeah.

THE COURT: I mean, I usually use a green
highlighter, he uses a yellow one, but we’ve got it.

MR. MARQUIS: All right. Okay. So, American
Vantage Brownstone, --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MARQUIS: -- they signed this contract. Mr.
Tassinari signed as other investor. His name’s identified,
printed out on the American Vantage one, not printed out on
the other one.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MARQUIS: But it’s the same signature. 1It’s
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not even close. 1It’s a distinctive signature. It’s not
like it’s some kind of, you know, line with an X in it or
something.

THE COURT: So, in your view, that establishes the
privy part of the analysis?

MR. MARQUIS: That -- certainly the fact that
American Vantage is the parent corporation --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MARQUIS: -- of the other two plaintiffs. And
Mr. Tassinari is the chairman of American Vantage and he
actually signed on behalf of American Vantage and he also
signed himself. So, 1t clearly -- there's privy in this
case. I don’t think it’s a close call. The second prong -
- and in the term sheet itself it even says, it identifies
the Brownstone GoldTown, LLC, i1is a subsidiary of American
Vantage Brownstone. It’s right in the terms of the
agreement.

The second prong in the Five Star Capital case is:
Is the Order of Dismissal with Prejudice valid? I don’t
think there's any question that it is.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MARQUIS: It was signed by the attorneys for
everybody. It was acceptance of an Offer of judgment. We
argued about the terms before Judge Israel. There's no

question that that’s a valid, legal, and binding Order.
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Finally: Could the claims have been brought in
this case -- in the first case? Obviously, Your Honor --

THE COURT: They tried to.

MR. MARQUIS: They tried to.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MARQUIS: They tried to bring them. They
tried to bring them and the defendants in this -- that
they’re trying to sue in this case, after we litigated for

yvears and finally settled this case, and Mr. Tassinari was

deposed in that case. Mr. Tassinari signed the term sheet.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: Twice. And American Vantage signed
the term sheet. For them to say that they could not have
brought these claims on this term sheet in the first case
is incorrect, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Let me ask you —--

MR. MARQUIS: And they certainly could have
brought them.

THE COURT: Let me ask you a couple gquestions.

MR. MARQUIS: Yeah. Certainly could have brought
those in this case and there’s very little gquestion about
it. ©Now, they’ve argued that well --

THE COURT: Okay. Let me interrupt you and ask
you a question.

MR. MARQUIS: Sure.
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THE COURT: You’re familiar with the Judge Ron
Israel events that happened?

MR. MARQUIS: Oh yeah. Yeah. No. I was part of
the --

THE COURT: Yeah I know you were part of it and
you were there.

MR. MARQUIS: Yeah. Yeah.

THE COURT: So, I have a couple gquestions having
to do with that.

MR. MARQUIS: Sure.

THE COURT: As I understand it, there is this
Motion to Amend --

MR. MARQUIS: Right.

THE COURT: -- that you’ve mentioned. It was
withdrawn, as I understand it.

MR. MARQUIS: Just never ruled on because it was
settled first.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: It was not withdrawn. There was
never a hearing. There was never an Opposition filed --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: -- because, in the meantime, this
Offer of Judgment had been served and accepted.

THE COURT: All right. That clears that up a

little bit up for me.
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Let me ask you this, and I'm just asking you what
you think. I mean, --

MR. MARQUIS: Sure.

THE COURT: -- You might not know the answer to
this because you’re not Judge Israel, but why did he make
this comment or have this allowance to bring another
lawsuit? In other words, why do you think the judge, in
hearing this Motion to Clarify, because that’s what he’s
dealing with then. Right?

MR. MARQUIS: Right.

THE COURT: This Motion to Clarify and enforce
what is the Offer of Judgment end result. Right? That’s
what he’s doing.

MR. MARQUIS: Right.

THE COURT: Why did he basically say: Well, you
can bring another lawsuit -- and he didn’t really do
anything affirmative to, as I understand 1it, to actually
clarify or enforce anything.

MR. MARQUIS: Yes. He -- my understanding of what
he said from the bench, because I was there,

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MARQUIS: Okay. Was that no gquestion that the
Offer of Judgment was going to be accepted. No question
that the terms of the Offer in Judgment were going to be

incorporated into his Order.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: And they were. And they were. And
they were -- and they’re very specific. It’s dismissed
with prejudice:

Fully discharged and released with respect to any
and all claims as alleged or that could have been
alleged in this action.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MARQUIS: And then: Including, but not
limited to, those asserted in the Complaint as well as
any related or potential claims that could be asserted
as action against one another.

So, 1t was very broad but what he stated from the
bench was that what was before him was the resolution of
this case. Whether or not they would file another case,
which, you know, of course they were saying then: Well, we
wouldn’t do that. Right? But didn’t take them long to do
it. So -- but they -- 1if that case was filed, that was
going to be assigned to a different judge and that wasn’t
before him at this time. And that --

THE COURT: What type of case, though, you think
it was envisioned in that? It just seemed, I'm just
saying, I'm not criticizing Judge Israel. I'm not. That’s
not the point of this. But i1if a Jjudge says: Well, you can

go file some other lawsuit, what was -- what kind of
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lawsuit was envisioned in this potential future filing?

MR. MARQUIS: I envisioned, Your Honor, that they
would file exactly what they filed, which was their amended
-— their counterclaim that they sought to assert by filing
their Motion to Amend. I envisioned that they would file
that exact claim against American Vantage Brownstone and
Mr. Tassinari. That’s exactly what we envisioned and
that’s what we exactly told Judge Israel we were afraid
that they would do.

THE COURT: So, I take it maybe the judge was of a
mindset: Well, let somebody else handle that. I'm done
with it here. I mean that --

MR. MARQUIS: That’s exactly what he said.

THE COURT: And not as an indication that it had
validity but rather under --

MR. MARQUIS: No. And as a matter of fact, he
doubted -- he said he didn’t think it would survive a
motion but it wasn’t before him and he wasn’t going to make
that ruling. Somebody else was going to have to decide
that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: So, now we’re before Your Honor.

THE COURT: I understand.

MR. MARQUIS: Okay.

THE COURT: All right.
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MR. MARQUIS: So, and --

THE COURT: Because I -- the reason I mentioned
that, too, is that --

MR. MARQUIS: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- I’ve had it happen where, you know,
a settlement happens or an Offer of Judgment i1s accepted
and people come in and they ask for some kind of
clarification, or some kind of enforcement, or something
from a, you know, a judge. And if it is my case 1’11 do
it. I typically Jjust do it.

MR. MARQUIS: Yeah.

THE COURT: But, I mean, I'm not criticizing Judge
Israel but I mean I'm just trying to figure out what
happened because it’s -- I think it would be a little
inconsistent with the way I do stuff but that’s okay. He’s
been around longer than me and maybe his way is better. I
don’t know. But I'm just saying that’s my thought.

MR. MARQUIS: I don’t know. I mean, had he
granted our motion at that time then we wouldn’t be here
today but he didn’t, so they --

THE COURT: Got it.

MR. MARQUIS: -- immediately refiled the same
claim --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: -- they asserted in their amended
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pleading that they sought to assert.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. MARQUIS: And the final thing I’d like to
point out to Your Honor is the fact, the undisputed fact,
based on Mr. Mendenhall’s affidavits filed in the other
case and 1in this case, that Mr. Mendenhall had this page,
this Exhibit F, with these signatures. He had this and
admits he had that --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: -- in December of 2007. For them to
say now, oh, you know, we didn’t have this or we didn’t see
it, well, it’s -- they produced it. They had it.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MARQUIS: The one we had wasn’t as good a copy
and that’s the next exhibit, Exhibit G. That’s not a great
copy. That’s the one we had but they had the good copy
with the clear signatures. 1It’s not what they showed the
people in the depositions but they had it. It had been
produced 1in the case before the depositions --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: -—- by them.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. MARQUIS: And them to -- for Mr. Mendenhall to
say, he didn’t know who signed it, I couldn’t tell what

those signatures were, there’s no question he signed it
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first. ©Nobody signed it before Mr. Mendenhall. He signed
it first. He faxed it back. The signatures were -- the
other signatures were made and then sent back to Mr.
Mendenhall and he admits he got it the next day.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MARQUIS: And he had this document.

THE COURT: Yeah. I noted that.

MR. MARQUIS: So for him to say that they couldn’t

have brought these claims because didn’t know where those
- those signatures were on there. It just does not ring
true, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Right. I have that fact down here,

since you mentioned it. December 2007, Tassinari and
Mendenhall reach an agreement. That’s the term sheet
agreement.

MR. MARQUIS: Correct.

THE COURT: That set forth that Mendenhall would
transfer property to Brownstone plaintiffs in exchange for
an interest in the Brownstone plaintiffs -- they would
contribute initial development costs. And it goes on from
there.

MR. MARQUIS: That’s right, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MARQUIS: And that’s what the other case was

about. The other case was that Mr. Mendenhall never
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transferred the property.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MARQUIS: ©So, the casino was never built.

THE COURT: Right. Got it. Okay. Understand.

MR. MARQUIS: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Your Honor. As the Court
is well aware, res judicata and its modern branches are
equitable doctrines designed to present -- prevent a
plaintiff from suing a defendant over, and over, and over.
That’s certainly not the case here. That’s what was
envisioned and talked about in the Five Star case. What we
have here are defendants who are admitted fraud feasors and
they are now coming to this Court seeking equity. Equity
does not allow a fraud feasor to use this Court as an arrow
in its guiver to avoid a $7,000,000 fraud compounded with
an additional $1.2 million fraud on the case and we believe
that’s why Judge Israel indicated that he would be fine
with another case being brought, another lawsuit.

The facts that you haven’t mentioned here today
that are salient, that must be accepted to be true
regarding the development of this casino, was that Sunridge
had the property. Brownstone was going to develop the
property and Sunridge was going to exchange the property
for an interest and Brownstone was going to bring in this

investor group out of Canada. And that investor group was
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going to infuse $7,000,000 in cash.

Now, what you have when you look at the term sheet
are the signatures of Mr. Tassinari on behalf of AVB. Then
you -- we have testimony in the underlying in the first
action from Anna Morrison and Robert Gross, who were a part
of Brownstone, and they, looking at the signature of who
they want you to believe is their boss, could not tell that
it was his signature, that it was the same signature as he
signed under AVB. In fact, both of them testified that
they believed that that was some Canadian fellow who was
signing on behalf of a Canadian consortium that was going
to infuse $7,000,000 into this project.

It wasn’t until Mr. Tavinari’s [sic] deposition
that we learned that that wasn’t the case. Nobody was in
the room with Mr. Tassinari when he signed that. Mr.
Mendenhall was not in the same room there. As you heard,
there was a faxing that went back and forth. Mr.
Mendenhall affixes his signature, then as signatures were
affixed by the other parties, and then faxed back.

What Mr. Tassinari admitted to in his deposition
was that he signed on behalf of the other investors and
then he admitted to a stunning fraud, that when he signed
that document he had no intention, on behalf of himself or
any consortium or any other fictional group that he was

representing when he affixed his signature there, of
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infusing $7,000,000 in cash. But yet, at the same time, he
still wanted to hold Mr. Mendenhall liable for deposit on
the property.

Now, as the Court has mentioned, timing on this is
very important, that the Court understands that timing.

The parties were up against a discovery deadline. It was a
hard deadline. They had taken the depositions of Gross and
Morrison. Both Gross and Morrison, who were testifying on
behalf of the Brownstone entities, said that this signature
for the other investors, some signature they didn’t
recognize. They assumed it was the Canadian fellow.
Shortly thereafter, on July lOﬁU 2014, Mr. Mendenhall and
Sunridge served a $1.2 million Offer of Judgment.

Now, the 10 days after that, the 10 judicial days
after that come into very important play here, Your Honor,
because as this Court is aware, an Offer of Judgment, once
made, cannot be withdrawn under any circumstances, even the
recognition of fraud on the other side, within that first
10 days. And that’s the rule that caught everybody here.

Four days after the Offer of Judgment was served,
Mr. Tassinari’s deposition was taken. Not before, as was
insinuated a moment ago. Four days after the Offer of
Judgment was served, his deposition was taken. And it was
then and only then that the plaintiffs -- or the defendants

in the action learned of Mr. Tassinari’s stunning fraud.
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On the 21°%, a week later, the defendants filed
their Motion for Leave to Amend. That was never heard. It
was never heard for a good reason, because before the 10
days was up, the Offer of Judgment was accepted. Remember,
we had no ability to withdraw that offer of judgment. TWe
had to play that out. It was accepted. The case was dead.
The judge did not hear the motion. Leave was not granted
to file the new claim. No claim was served. There was no
jeopardy attached, if you want to borrow a claim from
criminal law. That -- those claims simply were not part of
that case. The only claims that were part of that case
that were served and for which due process started were the
claims that were filed by the plaintiffs in that case
against the defendants, my clients.

Now, addressing the Five Star elements. First,
the Five Star case, and most of the cases looking at the
Five Star case, deal with plaintiffs who are filing serial
lawsuits. That’s not the circumstance here. We were the
defendants in the last action. We’re now the plaintiffs in
this action so it’s not the case where the Court is trying
to keep a plaintiff from continually filing suit, after
suit, after suit until it gets what they want from a Court.
That’s not the case here.

The initial action was a fraud action. This is --

excuse me, a breach of contract action. This one,
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obviously, is a fraud action. The question of privity, if
we were talking about if we had brought an action for
breach of contract or breach of the covenant of good faith
and fair dealing sounding either in tort or in contract
action and we were standing here in front of you on that, I
would agree with Mr. Marquis that there would be an
argument for privity there. We’re not standing before you
on those causes of action. We’re not standing before you
on a breach action. We’re standing before you on a fraud
action that wasn’t discovered until after the Offer of
Judgment was made 1n the action and it was too late for us
to withdraw that.

Corporate agents and their -- and individuals are
separately liable for their fraudulent actions and, in this
case, Mr. Tassinari not only duped Mr. Mendenhall but he
duped his own employees in the subsidiary companies,
Morrison and Gross. Both of those subsidiaries thought
that that signature belonged to the Canadian fellow as
well. That’s how they testified at their deposition.

THE COURT: What was the sum and substance of the
Motion to Clarify and Enforce that Judge Israel basically
didn’t rule on with specificity?

MR. YOUNG: Your Honor, that was to do with the
nature of the Order itself. And i1if we look at the Order

itself, Your Honor, it does bear some --
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THE COURT: In other words, you’re telling me it
didn’t have anything to do with this fraud thought?

MR. YOUNG: Come again?

THE COURT: It didn’t have anything to do with a
fraud that you’re now alleging?

MR. YOUNG: No, Your Honor, because that didn’t
appear until after the Offer of Judgment. He was looking
at the language of the Offer of Judgment and how that
language was going to affect the dismissal language.

THE COURT: Why wouldn’t you say to Judge Israel

though, something along the lines of what you’re saying to

me, having to do with the factual chronology? In other
words, the idea that on July 10" the Offer of Judgment is
served and on July 14" Tassinari’s deposition is taken.
You now think there's fraud or you’ve discovered fraud
based upon, as you say, some -- I forget how you said it
but some surprisingly --

MR. YOUNG: Stunning fraud.

THE COURT: Stunning fraud. Right. Whatever.
makes an admission that he never intended to pay the
7,000,000 bucks or whatever. Right?

MR. YOUNG: Right.

THE COURT: 1It’s a stunning admission.

MR. YOUNG: It is.

THE COURT: Okay. That’s what you said. But in
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any event, why wouldn’t you do that with Judge Israel while
he has the case if that’s really what you’re --

MR. YOUNG: That was done, Your Honor. And what
Judge Israel said was: You’re stuck with it. The 10 days
are the 10 days. You don’t get to -- you don’t get to 1lift
that for any reason whatsoever. You’re stuck with it. I'm
stuck with it. I don’t like it. Go file your suit
somewhere else. So, we’re stuck with this result just
because of language in the Offer of Judgment statute.

THE COURT: Because it’s interesting. I mean,
it’s six in one, half a dozen in the other, I guess. But
if you did perfect with Judge Israel a legal attempt to
have the Judge Israel case address this alleged fraud and
he denied that, wouldn’t that -- wouldn’t the procedural
avenue be something -- some kind of an activity with the
Nevada Supreme Court on that issue?

MR. YOUNG: He didn’t deny it. Our attempt to get
in front of him was the Motion for Leave, which is proper.
That was never heard because the case died as soon as the
Offer of Judgment was accepted. And so the judge never
heard the Motion for Leave.

THE COURT: So, I'm -- what I'm trying to figure
out, Mr. Young, is this: 1In your view, did you or did you
not perfect, in the record of the Israel case, your attempt

to bring the fraud claim that you now have in our court in
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the Israel case? 1Is it perfected in that record or not?

MR. YOUNG: I don’t think it’s perfected because
we never had an opportunity to be heard on the Motion for
Leave to Amend.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. YOUNG: Judge certainly knew it was out there
and told us we were stuck with it and to file our action in
another court. So, here we are.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. YOUNG: And I think the Court really hit the
nail on the head when talking about whether this was a
compulsory or permissive counterclaim in the first case
because a decision could swing on that fact here as well.
If we go to the second element --

THE COURT: That’s a good point, Mr. Young,
because what I'm getting at -- that’s really where I'm
going in my mind having to do with this little discussion
about did you perfect with Judge Israel --

MR. YOUNG: Right.

THE COURT: -- the idea of: Hey, we want to bring
a fraud claim here because we had a deposition four days
after the Offer of Judgment and that changed things.
Because if you did sort of have that in there, that’s more
along the lines of, I think, a compulsory counterclaim sort

of a theory. I mean, the whole philosophy would be that

Page 26

0220



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

it’s more appropriate to bring right then and there in the
Israel case.

MR. YOUNG: Right. And nobody here has argued, to
my knowledge, that it was a compulsory counterclaim. First
of all, it wasn’t a counterclaim, it was a third party
claim.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. YOUNG: Right.

THE COURT: I know. It’s the same philosophy is
what I'm saying.

MR. YOUNG: Exactly.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. YOUNG: Exactly.

And I want to touch very briefly on the second
element of the Five Star case, whether the facts that were
essential are the same. The facts that were essential to
the breach of contract were whether Mr. Mendenhall
submitted the property to the venture as he was required to
under the term sheet. That has nothing to do with whether
Mr. Tassinari signed a document pledging $7,000,000 knowing
full well that he had no intention of actually giving the
$7,000,000.

THE COURT: Okay. Fair enough. Let me ask you
this question and I hope you think it’s a fair one. When

Mendenhall serves the Offer of Judgment and -- on July 10",
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Right?

MR. YOUNG: Yes.

THE COURT: What am I supposed to do about that
with this thought process? I mean, you control whether you
sign off on an Offer of Judgment. There's a whole bunch of
statutes that are real clear that there's penalties and
exposure, there's legal exposure, a lot of it. You know,
when the Legislature came out with that whole Offer of
Judgment statutory scheme and then a bunch of case law that
comes after that, I think it would be pretty clear to
anybody involved with an Offer of Judgment decision that if
we do this, I mean, it’s serious. There's serious
consequences, legally. I mean, if you go to trial and, you
know, you beat an Offer of Judgment then you get a lot of
stuff for that.

MR. YOUNG: Right.

THE COURT: You get attorney’s fees, costs, and
you get a lot for that. So, there’s a lot of significance
to these Offers of Judgment. And, so, what I'm really
getting to is, on July 10" when a $1.2 million Offer of
Judgment 1is sent out, is it that you sort of -- I'm not
saying it’s a complete waiver, but it seems to me that at
least an argument can be made that if you’re going to do
that with a deposition that you know you’re going to be

involved with in four days, it’s almost as though you’re
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saying: You know what? We don’t really care about the
deposition as much as -- to Affect the timing of our Offer
of Judgment. I mean, why did you do the Offer of Judgment
after the deposition four days later?

MR. YOUNG: Well, Your Honor, I suppose that would
be the case i1f we were standing here suing Brownstone
again. That’s not this case. Yeah, there is some risk to
filing an Offer of Judgment and it’s a risk that everybody
assumes. I mean, this property was worth, at the time,
about $15,000,000. So, you know, knowing that they
uncovered their own fraud, they accept the Offer of
Judgment so that -- instead of the 15,000,000 that they
were hoping for. That, you know, but again, we were stuck
with that result not knowing --

THE COURT: But you had the term sheet since
December of 2007.

MR. YOUNG: And yet their own people said that
that wasn’t Mr. Tavinari’s [sic] signature. I don’t think
that fact can be stressed enough. They know him. Mr.
Mendenhall doesn’t know his signature. It’s enough
dissimilar that they thought it was this Canadian
consortium. You have that testimony in front of you, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: But fair to say, on July 10, 2014,

when Mendenhall puts the $1.2 million Offer of Judgment
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down, the term sheet has been available and known for five
years?

MR. YOUNG: It has. But let's look at the
language of that Offer of Judgment. That Offer of Judgment
only covers, what Mr. Marguis conveniently left off at the
end of his gquotation there, in this action against one
another. Those six words have not been spoken by Mr.
Marquis for a reason because we’re not here suing the same
people that we were suing before. The Offer of Judgment
was to those people, on those claims. The only claims that
were alive were the claims that were made by the plaintiffs
in that action, not these new claims. They were not ever
allowed to be alive. Leave was not even considered, much
less granted.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. YOUNG: And that’s the language that’s then
after reflected in the order of dismissal. If we look at
that, the order of dismissal:

All claims as alleged -- and then going down to
the end of that paragraph:

In this action against one another.

Now, Mr. Marquis wants to stand up and say:

That’s everything. Anything that could have been alleged
in that action. But it’s not against one another.

Now, let's not forget that these are third party
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actions and the case law suggests that we have to look at
Rule 13(g) in conjunction with the preclusion rules.
That’s the Executive Management case that you referred to
before. When dealing with subsequent litigation between
former codefendants, which again is not a perfect analogy
here but closer than what we have argued by Mr. Marquis,
you must consider the rules regarding cross claims in
conjunction with the rules of preclusion. Rule 13(qg)
provides a permissive may:

A party may file actions against a co-party.

So, we could have, instead of filing that Motion
for Leave to Amend, walked down to the courthouse and filed
in another action and there’s nothing that they could have
done about it at that time.

THE COURT: Yeah, but 13(a) talks about compulsory
counterclaims and the idea that i1f it arises out of the
same transaction of occurrence --

MR. YOUNG: Right. But these facts, the facts
that we rely on here today, have nothing to do with the
facts that they relied on in that action. There is -- the
circumstances are that they happened at the same time when
both parties are signing the term sheet.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. YOUNG: But one is whether Mr. Mendenhall

refused to submit the property. The other one is whether
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someone committed a fraud at that time and then later
developed that fraud during the deposition. So, yeah there
is an interplay between 13(a) and 13(g), but 13(a) is only
if we’re talking about the same parties on the same sets of
facts. That’s not the case here. We have --

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Young, what do you
make of Mr. Marquis’ argument that there's evidence in the
record? I mean, because the analysis for me, and it’s
never any fun to have to figure out what some other judge
did and why.

MR. YOUNG: Right.

THE COURT: But, I mean, that’s clearly part of
the analysis here is what happened in the Israel case and
is it distinguishable someway meaningfully in this whole
claim preclusion area, as compared to our case. Of course.
That’s the whole -- that’s the analysis. But how do you
then reconcile, again, Mr. Marquis’ argument that: Well,
we have evidence. 1It’s a piece of paper. Probably more
than one sheet. Your Motion to Amend that was brought, how
do you reconcile that because that -- it’s a good argument,
I think, that Mr. Marquis makes. In other words, he says:
Look, Judge, to me, he says there's evidence. You know,
it’s sort of the smoking gun evidence that -- of a sort of
a compulsory claim or counterclaim, or at least philosophy,

and it’s evidenced by your own Motion to Amend which is
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mirroring the claim you have here now. How do you
reconcile that?

MR. YOUNG: Well, that might be a smoking gun if
his own clients hadn’t testified at their depositions that
they didn’t recognize that signature as being Mr.
Tavinari’s [sic]. How is that a smoking gun if his own
people don’t recognize it for what he claims it to be and
what he ultimately told us it was during his deposition?

THE COURT: Well, I think the answer to that, and
Mr. Marquis could argue it, but, I mean, what he might say
to me is that Motion to Amend is evidence that you knew
everything that you needed to know in order to bring it in
the Israel case.

MR. YOUNG: Well, he did know, as of the 14"". And
if we look at Rule 13(e), Your Honor, 13(e) allows for the
filing, even -- even considering 13(a), 13(e) is a trump of
13(a) and it says if you have something that matures after
the action files, then you can file even in a non-
permissive fashion under 13(a). You could under 13(e).

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. YOUNG: So, I don’t think you’re completely
lost. Again, what we’re talking about here is fundamental
fairness. Right? That’s what these rules are trying to
get toward and that’s what rule preclusion, claim

preclusion, issue preclusion is trying to get at.
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THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. YOUNG: And here is a party that has admitted
to be a fraud feasor. And he’s seeking equity in front of
you. How can the Court do anything other than deny that?

THE COURT: But you, I mean -- this is a bit of a
devil’s advocate sort of statement and I’11 try to make it
into a question, but I mean, I’'11 just tell you what’s
running through my mind in part, in part. I mean, clear to
say, and correct me if I'm wrong, that as of July 14&2 it’s
clear from your perspective, in any event, in the light
most favorable to you, that Mr. Tassinari here committed
fraud. Right?

MR. YOUNG: Yes.

THE COURT: You still have at least a month before
Judge Israel is doing something to dispose of the case.

MR. YOUNG: That’s not true.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. YOUNG: What we have is 10 days from the 10
until it’s disposed of because it’s disposed of once the
offer is accepted. And before the offer is accepted --

THE COURT: But as far as the District Court
itself, the Judge Israel department, I don’t know what
number it is. 1I’ve never been good with that. But as far
as him actually doing something to close the case, that

doesn’t happen for another month or so after the 14", Fair
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enough?

MR. YOUNG: Fair enough. And —--

THE COURT: So, why not, again, do something with
that judge to get him to do what you’re asking me to do now
in this lawsuit? Safe to say --

MR. YOUNG: We attempted. We asked for the Motion
for Leave to be heard on an order shortening time.

THE COURT: But you withdrew -- you withdrew it.

MR. YOUNG: What’s wrong?

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: No. It was just removed. It
was just removed once the settlement was done.

MR. YOUNG: I believe so.

THE COURT: What happened to not have it heard?

MR. YOUNG: The case was dead once the offer was
accepted.

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: They accepted the Offer of
Judgment.

THE COURT: Okay. But it wasn’t heard, in other
words?

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: Right. It was never heard.

MR. YOUNG: Right. Never heard.

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: There was no Opposition. The
time to file an Opposition hasn’t even run by the time they
accepted the offer.

MR. YOUNG: It was —--
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. YOUNG: They accepted the offer three days
after the motion was filed.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. YOUNG: So, everything stopped.

THE COURT: So, isn’t it true that as a law of the
case that this idea of amending to include fraud is
encompassed then in everything that happened with Israel?

MR. YOUNG: No.

THE COURT: Seems like it is to me.

MR. YOUNG: How could you say that, Your Honor,
when leave wasn’t even considered, much less granted?

THE COURT: It was a pleading in the case. I
mean, you could -- I'm just saying, I told you this was
going to be a bit of a devil’s advocate position. But if
you believe in the fraud so much that you’re filing a
Motion to Amend and if you see a judge take any action to
finalize and dismiss the case, why wouldn’t you say:
Judge, before you do that, you know, this is what we need
to tell you. We know about this fraud from July 14™. We
have a Motion to Amend. Here it is. Give us our day on
this.

MR. YOUNG: And that’s what Judge Israel was
addressing when he was talking about what language was

going to go in the Order, was -- the language in the Order
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says: Between these parties. As to this other thing that
you want to do, go ahead and file that elsewhere.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. YOUNG: And I would suggest, Your Honor, if
what you’re suggesting is true, then the Court is a party
to Mr. Tassinari’s fraud. And that’s not a result that any
Court should want. I'11 --

THE COURT: Which Court? Israel?

MR. YOUNG: This courthouse. I mean, if you’re
saying that we’re now foreclosed from bringing this action
because we were not allowed to seek leave in the prior
action because of the timing of the Offer of Judgment and
now we come here and we can't -- couldn’t hear it here, the
court system itself would be a party to Mr. Tassinari’s
fraud, in my view.

THE COURT: Well, that’s not a good argument.

MR. YOUNG: Well, it --

THE COURT: I mean, that’s not a good argument.

MR. YOUNG: We’re here seeking equity, Your Honor.
They’ re seeking equity.

THE COURT: Yeah. But that’s not a good argument.
The Court has to handle the legal aspect of what’s been
brought. That doesn’t mean the Court then gets complicit
in a fraud.

MR. YOUNG: No. The point is probably overblown,
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Your Honor, but the point is that we have to seek equity at
every turn.

THE COURT: I understand.

MR. YOUNG: And there’s no equity --

THE COURT: Understood. But the Court doesn’t
become a party in a fraud by doing its best to handle the
legal aspects of claim preclusion or, you know, what -- and
that’s my perspective on it from what I'm doing here. I
mean, Jjust to let you know.

MR. YOUNG: ©No. I understand that.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Anything else you
want to add?

MR. YOUNG: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It’s your motion. You get the last
word.

MR. MARQUIS: Thank you, Your Honor. A couple of
things, Your Honor. First, they argue under Rule 13 that
this isn’t arising out of the same transaction. I don’t
think there's any question it is. 1It’s the same contract.
It’s parties to the same contract.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MARQUIS: Everybody that they’ve sued in this
case also signed, was a party to that same contract. For
them to say it’s not the same transaction in occurrence,

it’s -- it Jjust doesn’t hold water, Your Honor. Absolutely
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it was. Okay.

For them to say: Oh, it’s a different claim
because this is a fraud claim. That was a breach of
contract claim. Maybe if we sued them for breach of
contract maybe they’d be right. Well, that doesn’t work
either. 1In the Five Star case itself, they argue that:

Claim preclusion shouldn’t apply because a second
suit included an additional claim for breach of
contract.

And this Five Star Court ruled that claim was

erroneous. It’'s:

A claim preclude applies to prevent a second suit
based on all grounds of recovery that were or could
have been brought in the first suit.

They could have sued our clients back, the
Brownstone plaintiffs in the first case, they could have
sued them for breach of contract. They could have sued
them for fraud. They could have sued American Vantage, who
signed the contract, for breach of contract or fraud. They
could have signed Mr. Tassinari who signed the contract for
breach of contract or fraud. They could have sued all
those. 1It’s absolutely the same transaction in occurrence.

THE COURT: That --

MR. MARQUIS: The fact that it’s another theory,

that doesn’t matter for --
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THE COURT: Okay. Conceivably, I get that.

MR. MARQUIS: Yeah.

THE COURT: Let me ask you a gquestion though.

MR. MARQUIS: Sure.

THE COURT: Do you agree with Mr. Young’s comments
about the full force and effect of the deposition of your
client on July 1497

MR. MARQUIS: No. No. That’s -- that was, you
know, he’s taking bits and pieces out of the deposition.

He wasn’t there. It’s just bits of the transcript. The
fact was -- and what he’s not telling, Your Honor, is there
was never a question that there was a Canadian investor.
The Canadian investor had already invested substantial
amounts of money, millions of dollars in the form of loans,
into this transaction and that was all -- all those
documents were produced in that case. It wasn’t like some
mystery. He had already put in millions of dollars in the
form of loans and was prepared to put in additional funds
and we never got to the point of taking his deposition but
he was absolutely ready to go.

The only reason he didn’t put any more money in
was because what did he need for the thing to go forward?
He needed the dirt. He wanted to see Mr. Mendenhall and
Sunridge put in the land and then he put in some more

money.
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So, yeah. Their whole spin that this is some
stunning fraud, I mean, you know, I understand. You’ve got
to argue and you’re doing what you’re going to do, but no.
We don’t accept or agree with that at all.

And the whole -- their entire case, their entire
theory that this was some fraud and some trick all boils
down to these contracts, Your Honor. And when they argue
that at the depositions of Mr. Gross and Ms. Morrison, they
couldn’t identify the signatures, remember the signatures
that they presented in front of them were the signatures on
Brownstone 00271 which are very unclear copies. Yeah. If
you look at those, I don’t know 1f anybody can identify
those signatures. Maybe Mr. Tassinari can because they’re
his, but they are very fuzzy signatures. These are the
ones they elected to stick in front of those witnesses at
the deposition, but they had the clean signatures the whole
time. Since December 2007, Mr. Mendenhall had this and for
them to say that this was a fraud because I didn’t -- I
looked at their bad copy of it instead of the one that I
admit that I had that clearly shows his signature because
their whole fraud claim boils down to: We didn’t -- not
recognize those two signatures. But they had the document
since 2007, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Let me tell you all

that typically, I mean statistically really, probably 95
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percent of the time I like to tell people what the decision
is when they come to court. However, in this situation I
do want to look a little bit more at what Judge Israel did
and so I'm going to do that. That means I'm going to give
you a written opinion.

MR. MARQUIS: Very good. Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. RUTAR MULLINS: Thank you.

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 10:14 A.M.

* * * * *
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CERTIFICATION

I certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript from
the audio-visual recording of the proceedings in the
above-entitled matter.

AFFIRMATION

I affirm that this transcript does not contain the social
security or tax identification number of any person or
entity.

KRISTEN LUNKWITZ
INDEPENDENT TRANSCRIBER
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PARTY INFORMATION
Lead Attorneys

Defendant Tassinari, Ronald

Plaintiff Mendenhall, Robert L

Plaintiff Sunridge Corporation

James John Lee
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702-382-4044(W)

Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
702-257-1483(W)

Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
702-257-1483(W)

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

03/30/2015| Minute Order (3:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Bare, Rob)

Minutes
03/30/2015 3:00 AM

- DECISION: Motion to Dismiss This matter came before the
Court on March 17, 2015 for hearing on Defendants Motion to
Dismiss Re: Doctrine of Claim Preclusion. Counsel presented
their case and Court took matter under advisement. After
carefully considering the papers submitted and hearing
arguments, Court issued its Decision this 30th day of March,
2015. COURT ORDERED, Motion to Dismiss GRANTED.
Counsel for Tassinari and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC
is directed to submit a proposed Order consistent with the
foregoing which sets forth the underpinnings of the same in
accordance herewith and with counsel s briefing and argument
and submit to opposing counsel for review and signification of
approval/disapproval. CLERK'S NOTE: A copy of this Minute
Order to be placed in the attorney folder(s) of: Harry P.
Marquis, Esq., and Gwen P. Mullins (Howard & Howard).
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JAMES J. LEE, ESQ. Qe A
Nevada Bar No. 01909

Legal Offices of James J Lee

2620 Regatta Drive, Suite 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Telephone (702) 664-6545

Email: james@leelawonline.com

CLERK OF THE COURT

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 001252

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD.

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada, 89101

Telephone (702) 382-6700

Email: harry@marquislaw.net

Attorneys for Defendants Ronald Tassinari
And American Vantage Brownstone, LLC

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an individual, ) Case no.: A-14-708281-C
SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, a Nevada ) Dept. no.: XXXII
Corporation, ) '
)
)
Plaintiffs, )
) NOTICE OF ENTRY OF
\ ) FINDINGS OF FACT,
) CONCLUSIONS OF
RONALD TASSINARI, an individual, ) LAW, AND ORDER GRANTING
AMERICAN VANTAGE BROWNSTONE, ) DEFENDANTS’ MOTION
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, ) TO DISMISS
DOES 1 through 5, inclusive and ROE )
CORPORATIONS 1 through 5, inclusive, )
)
Defendants. )

TO:  GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESQ., HOWARD & HOWARD, PLLC, attorney for

Plaintiffs.

0239



N

e 0 9 & U s W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 7™ day of May, 2015, the above-entitled
Court entered a Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order Granting Defendants’ Motion to
Dismiss in the above-entitled action. A true copy of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Order Granting Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss is attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and incorporated

herein by this reference.

DATED this 5% day of /%//% , 2015,

Respectfully submitted,

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD.

—
HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 1252
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone (702) 382-6700
Attorneys for Defendants Ronald Tassinari
And American Vantage Brownstone, LLC

In Association with:

JAMES J. LEE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 01909

Legal Offices of James J Lee
2620 Regatta Drive, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
Telephone (702) 664-6545
Email: james@]leelawonline.com
Attorney for Defendants
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the 54’3«(1&}, of May, 2015, I served a true copy of the above and
foregoing Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order Granting
Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss herein electronically via the Court’s ECF system upon all parties

listed on the electronic service list, as follows:

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Wade B. Gochnour, Esq.

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 257-1483

Facsimile: (702) 567-1568

Email: grm@h2law.com

Email: wbg@h2law.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

An employee of
HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD.
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JAMES J. LEE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 0190Q9 CLERK OF THE COURT
Legal Offices of James J Lee

2620 Regatta Drive, Suite 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Telephone (702) 664-6545

Email: jamesinieelawonline.com

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 001252

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD.

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada, 89101

Telephone (702) 382-6700

Email: harry@marquislaw.net
Attorneys for Defendants Ronald Tassinari
And American Vantage Brownstone, LLC

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an individual, ) Case no.: A-14-708281-C
SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, a Nevada ) Dept. no.: XXXII
Corporation, ' )
) FINDINGS OF FACT,
) CONCLUSIONS OF
Plaintiffs, ) LAW, AND ORDER GRANTING
) DEFENDANTS’ MOTION
V. ) TO DISMISS
)
RONALD TASSINAR]I, an individual, )
AMERICAN VANTAGE BROWNSTONE, )
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, )
DOES 1 through 5, inclusive and ROE )
CORPORATIONS 1 through 5, inclusive, )
)
Defendants. )

The Motion to Dismiss filed on behalf of Defendants Ronald Tassinari and American
Vantage Brownstone, LLC, having come on for hearing on March 17, 2015; with Harry Paul

Marquis, Esq., of Harry Paul Marquis, Chartered, appearing on behalf of Defendants Ronald
ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO DISMISS - 1
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Tassinari and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC; with Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq. and Jay]
Young, Esq., of Howard & Howard Attorneys, PLLC, appearing on behalf of Plaintiffs, Robert
L. Mendenhall (“Mendenhall”) and Sunridge Corporation (“Sunridge”); the Court, having
considered the Motion, the Opposition and Reply thereto, and oral arguments by counsel, and
good cause appearing therefor, the Court rules as follows:

L. THE COURT HEREBY FINDS AND CONCLUDES that Defendants have
satisfied the three-part test for determining whether claim preclusion applies which the Nevada
Supreme Court established in Five Star Capital Corp v Ruby, 124 Nev. 1048, 194 P3d 709, 713
(2008);

2. THE COURT HEREBY FINDS AND CONCLUDES that Defendant American
Vantage Brownstone LLC is the owner of both Brownstone Gold Town, LLC, and Brownstone
Gold Town CV, LLC, (collectively the “First Case Plaintiffs”) the Plaintiffs in Brownstone Gold
Town LLC v. Robert Mendenhall et al, A-11-653822-C (the “First Case™) and that Defendant
American Vantage Brownstone LLC signed the Term Sheet which was attached as Exhibit 1 to
the Complaint herein (the “Term Sheet”);

3. THE COURT HEREBY FINDS AND CONCLUDES that Defendant Ronald
Tassinari signed the Term Sheet in his capacity as chairman of Defendant American Vantage
Brownstone LLC;

4. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that Defendant
Ronald Tassinari managed, led, and acted on behalf of the Brownstone Plaintiffs and the interests

and motivations of Defendant Ronald Tassinari and the Brownstone Plaintiffs have sufficient

commonality and alignment that privity exists;

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO DISMISS - 2
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5. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that |
Defendant American Vantage Brownstone LLC managed, led, owned, and acted on behalf of the]
Brownstone Plaintiffs and the interests and motivations of Defendant American Vantagg
Brownstone LLC and the Brownstone Plaintiffs have sufficient commonality and alignment that
privity exists;

6. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that
Defendants Ronald Tassinari and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC are both privies with
Brownstone Gold Town, LLC and Brownstone Gold Town CV, LLC, the Plaintiffs in the First
Case;

7. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that the first
part of the Five Star Capital Corp v Ruby, Supra, test that the parties or their privies are the

same has been satisfied;

8. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that the Order
of Dismissal of Action with Prejudice (the “Order of Dismissal”) filed in the First Case on
August 29, 2014 is a final valid judgment;

9. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that the
second part of the Five Star Capital Corp v Ruby, Supra, test that the final judgment is valid has
been satisfied;

10. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that on July
21, 2014, the Plaintiffs herein, Mendenhall and Sunridge, filed a Motion for Leave to Amend in
the First Case seeking to assert a counterclaim and a third-party complaint against Defendants
Ronald Tassinari and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC containing virtually the same
allegations as those set forth in the current Complaint filed herein on October 8, 2014;

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO DISMISS - 3
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11.  THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that claims
asserted in this action through the Complaint filed herein on October 8, 2014 are based on the
same claims or any part of them that were or could have been brought in the First Case;

12. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that the third
and final part of the Five Star Capital Corp v Ruby, Supra, test that the subsequent action is
based on the same claims or any part of them that were or could have been brought in the first
case has been satisfied;

13. THE COURT HEREBY FURTHER FINDS AND CONCLUDES that Plaintiffs
claims herein are barred by the doctrine of claim preclusion;

14. IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Defendant’s
Motion to Dismiss is hereby GRANTED in its entirety;

15.  IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that this action is
hereby dismissed, with prejudice as to all parties and all claims.

DATED this 28 day of April, 2015.

e T ———
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
JUDGE, DISTRICT COURT, DEPARTMENT a2

Respectfully Submitted By: Approved as to Form Only:

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHARTERED HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS

/>

ﬁ/\;__,.) .
HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, ESQ. GW, UTAWUTLWSQ.
Nevada Bar No. 1252 ada Bar No. 003146
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor ay A. Young, Esq.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 Nevada Bar No. 005562
Tel. No.: (702) 382-6700 3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 1400
Fax No.: (702) 384-0715 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Email: harrvizimarquislaw, net Tel. No.:(702) 257-1483
Attorney for Defendants Attorney for Plaintiffs
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In Association with:

JAMES J. LEE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 01909

Legal Offices of James J Lee
2620 Regatta Drive, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
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Attorney for Defendants
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Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 3146

Wade B. Gochnour, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 6314

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Las Vegas, Nevada §9169

Phone: 702.257.1483

Fax: 702.567.1568

E-Mail: grm@h2]law.com, wbg@h2law.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs Robert L. Mendenhall

and Sunridge Corporation

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an individual, Case No. A-14-708281-C

SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, a Nevada Dept. No. XXXII
corporation,

Plaintiffs, PLAINTIFFS’ NOTICE OF APPEAL
V.

RONALD TASSINARI, an individual,
AMERICAN VANTAGE BROWNSTONE,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company,
DOES 1 through 5, inclusive and ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 through 5, inclusive,

Defendants.

Notice is hereby given that Plaintiffs, ROBERT L. MENDENHALL and SUNRIDGE
CORPORATION, by and through their counsel of record, the law firm of Howard & Howard
Attorneys PLLC, hereby appeal to the Supreme Court of Nevada from the Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Order Granting Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss filed and entered on
May 7, 2015.
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This Appeal is taken on all matters of law and fact relating to the aforementioned
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order Granting Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss.

DATED this 19" day of May 2015.

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC

/s/ Gwen Rutar Mullins

GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 3146

WADE B. GOCHNOUR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6314

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Ste. 1000
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiffs Robert L. Mendenhall
and Sunridge Corporation

CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE

I do hereby certify that on the 19™ day of May 2015, I served a copy of the
PLAINTIFFS’ NOTICE OF APPEAL on all parties listed in the Master Service List in
accordance with the Electronic Filing Order entered in this matter on the following:

James J. Lee, Esq. — james@leelawonline.com
Harry Marquis, Esq. - harry @marquislaw.net

and by depositing a true and correct copy of the same for mailing at Las Vegas, Nevada, first-

class postage fully prepaid, addressed to:

Harry Paul Marquis, Esq. James J. Lee, Esq.

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS CHARTERED LAW OFFICE OF JAMES J. LEE

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor 2620 Regatta Drive, Ste. 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Attorneys for Defendants Ronald Tassinari Attorneys for Defendants Ronald Tassinari

and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC
s/ Kellie Piet

An employee of Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC
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Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 3146

Wade B. Gochnour, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 6314

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Las Vegas, Nevada §9169

Phone: 702.257.1483

Fax: 702.567.1568

E-Mail: grm@h2]law.com, wbg@h2law.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs Robert L. Mendenhall

and Sunridge Corporation

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an individual, Case No. A-14-708281-C

SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, a Nevada Dept. No. XXXII
corporation,

Plaintiffs, PLAINTIFFS’ CASE APPEAL
V. STATEMENT

RONALD TASSINARI, an individual,
AMERICAN VANTAGE BROWNSTONE,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company,
DOES 1 through 5, inclusive and ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 through 5, inclusive,

Defendants.

1. Name of appellants filing this case appeal statement:
Robert L. Mendenhall, Sunridge Corporation

2. Identify the judge issuing the decision, judgment or order appeal from:
Eighth Judicial District Court Judge Rob Bare.

3. Identify each appellant and the name and address of counsel for each appellant:
Appellants: Robert L. Mendenhall, Sunridge Corporation

111/
111
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4847-7485-1876.v2

Counsel for Appellants:

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Wade B. Gochnour, Esq.

Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Las Vegas, Nevada §9169

702-257-1483

Identify each respondent and the name and address of appeal counsel, if known,
for each respondent:

Respondents: Ronald Tassinari, American Vantage Brownstone, LLC

Counsel for Respondent:

Harry Paul Marquis, Esq.

Harry Paul Marquis Chartered

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

James J. Lee, Esq.

LAW OFFICE OF JAMES J. LEE
2620 Regatta Drive, Ste. 102

Las Vegas, Nevada §9128

All counsel identified are licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada.
Appellants were represented by retained counsel in the District Court.

Appellants will be represented by retained counsel in this Appeal.

Appellants have not been granted leave to proceed in forma pauperis.

Date this matter commenced in the District Court: October 8, 2014.

Provide a brief description of the nature of the action and result in the district
court, including the type of judgment or order being appealed and the relief
granted by the district court:

This appeal results from the District Court’s grant of Respondents’ Motion to
Dismiss Appellants’ Complaint for fraud in the inducement; fraud; negligent
misrepresentation; and fraudulent omission. Respondents, who were not parties
to a prior suit, claimed, and the district court agreed by the granting of the

Motion to Dismiss, that the tort claims asserted in this action were barred under
the doctrine of claim preclusion.
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11. This appeal has not previously been the subject of an appeal to original writ
proceeding in the Supreme Court.

12. This appeal does not involve child custody or visitation.
13. Appellant is unsure at this time whether this appeal involves the possibility of
settlement.

DATED this 19 day of May 2015.
HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC

/s/ Gwen Rutar Mullins

GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3146

WADE B. GOCHNOUR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6314

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Ste. 1000
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE

I do hereby certify that on the 19® day of May 2015, I served a copy of the
PLAINTIFFS’ CASE APPEAL STATEMENT on all parties listed in the Master Service List
in accordance with the Electronic Filing Order entered in this matter on the following:

James J. Lee, Esq. — james@leelawonline.com
Harry Marquis, Esq. - harry @marquislaw.net

and by depositing a true and correct copy of the same for mailing at Las Vegas, Nevada, first-

class postage fully prepaid, addressed to:

Harry Paul Marquis, Esq. James J. Lee, Esq.

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS CHARTERED LAW OFFICE OF JAMES J. LEE

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor 2620 Regatta Drive, Ste. 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Attorneys for Defendants Ronald Tassinari Attorneys for Defendants Ronald Tassinari

and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC
[s/ Kellie Piet

An employee of Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC
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PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys

Defendant Tassinari, Ronald James John Lee
Retained
702-382-4044(W)
Plaintiff Mendenhall, Robert L Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
702-257-1483(W)
Plaintiff Sunridge Corporation Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
702-257-1483(W)
EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT
DISPOSITIONS
05/07/2015| Order of Dismissal With Prejudice (Judicial Officer: Bare, Rob)

10/08/2014
10/08/2014

12/02/2014
12/02/2014
12/03/2014
12/10/2014
12/10/2014
12/11/2014
01/13/2015
01/23/2015
01/23/2015
02/10/2015
02/12/2015
02/24/2015
03/10/2015

03/17/2015

03/30/2015

Debtors: Robert L Mendenhall (Plaintiff), Sunridge Corporation (Plaintiff)
Creditors: Ronald Tassinari (Defendant), American Vantage Brownstone LLC (Defendant)
Judgment: 05/07/2015, Docketed: 05/14/2015

OTHER EVENTS AND HEARINGS

Case Opened
Complaint
Complaint
Affidavit of Due Diligence
Affidavit of Due Diligence re: American Vantage Brownstone, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company
Affidavit of Due Diligence
Affidavit of Due Diligence re: Ronald Tassinari
Ex Parte Application
Ex Parte Application for an Order to Allow Service by Publication of Summons as to Defendant Ronald Tassinari
Affidavit of Service
Affidavit of Service
Order for Publication
Order for Publication of Summons as to Defendant Ronald Tassinari
Notice of Entry of Order
Notice of Entry of Order for Publication of Summons as to Defendant Ronald Tassinari
Affidavit of Publication
Affidavit of Publication
Motion to Dismiss
Defendant's Motion to Dismiss
Initial Appearance Fee Disclosure
Initial Appearance Fee Disclosure
Stipulation and Order
Stipulation and Order To Continue Hearing on Motion to Dismiss
Notice of Entry of Stipulation and Order
Notice of Entry of Stipulation and Order to Continue Hearing on Motion to Dismiss
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss
Plaintiffs' Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Dismiss
Reply in Support
Reply in Support of Defendant's Motion to Dismiss
Motion to Dismiss (9:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Bare, Rob)
Defendant's Motion to Dismiss

Parties Present
Minutes
02/24/2015 Reset by Court to 03/17/2015

Result: Granted
Minute Order (3:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Bare, Rob)

Minutes
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05/07/2015
05/08/2015
05/19/2015
05/19/2015
05/19/2015
02/11/2016
02/11/2016

03/08/2016

Result: Minute Order - No Hearing Held
Order
Finding of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order Granting Defendant's Motion to Dismiss
Notice of Entry
Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order Granting Defendants' Motion to Dismiss
Case Appeal Statement
Plaintiffs' Case Appeal Statement
Notice of Appeal
Plaintiffs' Notice of Appeal
Notice of Posting of Cost Bond
Plaintiffs' Notice of Posting Bond for Costs on Appeal
Notice of Appearance
Notice of Appearance
Request
Request for Transcript of Proceedings
Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Transcript of Proceedings: Defendants' Motion to Dismiss -- 3-17-15

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

01/23/2015
01/23/2015

01/23/2015
01/23/2015

10/08/2014
10/08/2014
05/20/2015
05/20/2015
02/11/2016
02/11/2016
02/11/2016
02/11/2016

10/08/2014
10/08/2014

Defendant American Vantage Brownstone LLC
Total Financial Assessment

Total Payments and Credits

Balance Due as of 03/15/2016

Transaction Assessment
Wiznet Receipt # 2015-07700-CCCLK American Vantage Brownstone LL

Defendant Tassinari, Ronald
Total Financial Assessment
Total Payments and Credits
Balance Due as of 03/15/2016

Transaction Assessment
Wiznet Receipt # 2015-07699-CCCLK Tassinari, Ronald

Plaintiff Mendenhall, Robert L
Total Financial Assessment
Total Payments and Credits
Balance Due as of 03/15/2016

Transaction Assessment
Wiznet Receipt # 2014-115159-CCCLK Mendenhall, Robert L
Transaction Assessment
Wiznet Receipt # 2015-52872-CCCLK Mendenhall, Robert L
Transaction Assessment
Wiznet Receipt # 2016-14350-CCCLK Mendenhall, Robert L
Transaction Assessment
Wiznet Receipt # 2016-14492-CCCLK Mendenhall, Robert L

Plaintiff Sunridge Corporation
Total Financial Assessment
Total Payments and Credits
Balance Due as of 03/15/2016

Transaction Assessment
Wiznet Receipt # 2014-115160-CCCLK Sunridge Corporation

30.00
30.00
0.00

30.00
(30.00)

223.00
223.00
0.00

223.00
(223.00)

301.00
301.00
0.00

270.00
(270.00)
24.00
(24.00)
3.50
(3.50)
3.50
(3.50)

30.00
30.00
0.00

30.00
(30.00)
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Volume 1,
Bates Nos. 1-10

Exhibits to Complaint

Exhibit No. Document Description
1 Carson Valley Casino Term Sheet Volume 1,
Bates Nos. 11-16
Initial Appearance Fee Disclosure Volume 1,
Bates Nos. 17-18
Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss (filed 01/23/15) Volume 1,

Bates Nos. 19-29

Exhibits to Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss

Exhibit No. Document Description

A Complaint in Case No. A653822 (filed | Volume 1,
12/27/11) Bates Nos. 30-36

B Defendants’ Offer of Judgment in Case | Volume 1,
No. A653822 (dated 07/10/14) Bates Nos. 37-40

C Defendants’ Motion for Leave to Amend | Volume 1,
[Answer, Counterclaim and Third-Party | Bates Nos. 41-96
Complaint] with  Exhibits in  Case
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Electronically Filed
02/24/2015 03:30:14 PM

OPP m *'W

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 3146

Wade B. Gochnour, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 6314

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Las Vegas, Nevada §9169

Phone: 702.257.1483

Fax: 702.567.1568

E-Mail: grm@h2]law.com, wbg@h2law.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs Robert .. Mendenhall

and Sunridge Corporation

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an individual, Case No. A-14-708281-C
SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, a Nevada Dept. No. XXXII
corporation,
PLAINTIFFS’ OPPOSITION TO
Plaintiffs, DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS
v.
Hearing Date: March 17, 2015
RONALD TASSINARI, an individual, Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m.
AMERICAN VANTAGE BROWNSTONE,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company,
DOES 1 through 5, inclusive and ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 through 5, inclusive,

Defendants.

Plaintiffs, ROBERT L. MENDENHALL and SUNRIDGE CORPORATION
(collectively, the “Sunridge Parties”), by and through their counsel of record, the law firm of
Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC, hereby file their Opposition to Defendants, Ronald
Tassinari’s (“Tassinari”) and American Vantage Brownstone, LLC’s (“AVB”) (collectively, the
“Defendants’) Motion to Dismiss.

This Opposition is based upon the papers and pleadings on file herein, the following
Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the Affidavits of Robert L. Mendenhall (“Mendenhall
111
vy
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Affidavit”) and Wade B. Gochnour (“Gochnour Affidavit”) submitted in support hereof, and

any argument the Court may hear.

DATED this 24" day of February, 2015.

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC

[s/ Gwen Rutar Mullins

GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 3146

WADE B. GOCHNOUR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6314

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Ste. 1000
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiffs Robert L. Mendenhall
and Sunridge Corporation

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I
INTRODUCTION

Defendants seek dismissal of the Sunridge Parties’ Complaint based upon the doctrine of
claim preclusion. Defendants claim that the Sunridge Parties’ claims against the Defendants in
this matter could have been, and should have been, asserted in a prior lawsuit in which the
Sunridge Parties were sued by Brownstone Gold Town, LL.C and Brownstone Gold Town, CV,
LLC (collectively, “Brownstone Plaintiffs”) for breach of an alleged contract. Defendants, who
were not parties in the prior suit, now claim that because the current tort claims were not raised
in the prior breach of contract suit, they are now barred.

The claims at issue in the instant action were never part of the prior action, and could not
have been asserted in the prior action. In fact, the Sunridge Parties were not aware of the
Defendants’ fraudulent acts until Tassinari’s deposition, which occurred long after the Sunridge
Parties served their Answer in the First Action, and while the Sunridge Parties’ Offer of
Judgment to the Brownstone Plaintiffs was already pending, and could not be withdrawn. The

Offer of Judgment was made to resolve the claims asserted or could have been asserted by the
Page 2 of 16
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Brownstone Plaintiffs and the Sunridge Parties, against one another. The Brownstone Plaintiffs
accepted the Sunridge Parties” Offer of Judgment, resolving the claims between the Sunridge
Parties and the Brownstone Plaintiffs, and thereby preventing the Sunridge Parties from
asserting their fraud claims against Defendants in the First Action.

It is undisputed that the Sunridge Parties could not have asserted the claims made in this
action in the First Action as the case concluded before the Sunridge Parties were legally and
procedurally able to bring the claims. Because the Sunridge Parties’ claims were not, and could
not have been litigated in the First Action, they are not barred by the doctrine of claim
preclusion, and Defendants’ Motion should be denied.

II.
STATEMENT OF FACTS

On or about December 27, 2011, the Brownstone Plaintiffs filed a lawsuit against the
Sunridge Parties in the District Court, Clark County, Nevada, Case No. A-11-653822-C (the
“First Action”). The Brownstone Plaintiffs alleged causes of action against the Sunridge Parties
for: (1) Breach of Contract; (2) Breach of Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing;
(3); Unjust Enrichment and (4) Declaratory Relief, arising out of the Brownstone Plaintiffs’
attempt to treat the December 4, 2007 Carson Valley Casino Project Term Sheet (the “Term
Sheet”) as a binding contract rather than an outline of the terms to be put into a later binding
agreement. See Exhibit A attached to Defendants’ Motion. The Sunridge Parties filed an
Answer to the Complaint. At the time of the filing of their Answer, the Sunridge Parties were
not aware of the fraudulent actions of Defendants that are the subject to this action. Defendants
were not parties in the First Action.

On July 10, 2014, in an effort to resolve the First Action, the Sunridge Parties served an
Offer of Judgment on the Brownstone Plaintiffs. See Exhibit B attached to Defendants’ Motion.
Specifically, the Offer of Judgment provided:

Defendants ROBERT L. MENDENHALL and SUNRIDGE
CORPORATION hereby offer to allow judgment to be entered in
favor of Plaintiffs BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN, LLC and
BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN CV, LLC and against

Page 3 of 16
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Defendants ROBERT L. MENDENHALL and SUNRIDGE
CORPORATION in the lump sum of ONE MILLION TWO
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,200,000.00) in settlement of all
claims between and among ROBERT L. MENDENHALL,
SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN,
LLC and BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN CV, LLC or those
asserted or that could have been asserted on behalf of each of
them against one another, inclusive of all accrued costs and legal
fees.

Acceptance of this Offer of Judgment would fully discharge and
release any and all claims as alleged, or that could have been
alleged, in this action by ROBERT L. MENDENHALL,
SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN,
LLC, and BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN CV, LLC, including,
but not limited to, those asserted in the Complaint as well as any
related to potential claims that could be asserted in this action
against one another. This offer will expire 10 days after the date
of its service.

Id.

On July 14, 2014, the Sunridge Parties deposed Tassinari in the First Action. See
Gochnour Affidavit. During Tassinari’s deposition, Tassinari testified: (1) that he had signed
the Term Sheet that was the basis for the contract claims in the First Action, signing on behalf
of the “Other Investor(s)” and on behalf of AVB; and (2) that he had no expectation to invest
$7,000,000 as set out in the Term Sheet. Id.; see also the excerpts from the Deposition
Transcript of Ronald Tassinari at 37:17-38:17, attached to the Gochnour Affidavit as Exhibit 1.

Prior to Tassinari’s deposition, the Sunridge Parties were unaware that Tassinari had
signed the Term Sheet as the “Other Investor(s).” See Mendenhall Affidavit. In fact, during the
depositions of Anna M. Morrison on July 6, 2014 and the deposition of Robert F. Gross on July
11, 2014, both representatives of the Brownstone Plaintiffs, both witnesses testified that they
believed that the signature for “Other Investor(s) was that of a Canadian investor who was also
looking to invest in Brownstone Gold Town CV, LLC. See excerpts of the deposition of Anna
M. Morrison, attached to the Gochnour Affidavit as Exhibit 2. See also excerpts of the

deposition of Robert F. Gross, attached to the Gochnour Affidavit as Exhibit 3. So, prior to
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Tassinari’s deposition on July 14, 2014, both the Sunridge Parties and the other representatives
of the Brownstone Plaintiffs believed the Term Sheet had been signed by an investment group
from Canada. Only Tassinari knew the truth, which was not discovered until the July 14, 2014
deposition.

The Sunridge Parties relied on the fact that another investor, i.e. a Canadian investor,
was committing to invest $7,000.000 before agreeing to sign the Term Sheet. Prior to
Tassinari’s deposition, the Sunridge Parties were not aware of the fraudulent actions and
omissions that were perpetrated against them as alleged in the Complaint in this action. The
deception was not discovered until July 14, 2014, which was only 4 days prior to the July 18,
2014 discovery cut-off in the First Action, and only 56 days before the matter was set for trial.

On July 22, 2014, after learning of Defendants’ and the Brownstone Plaintiffs’
fraudulent conduct, the Sunridge Parties filed a Motion to Amend Answer to add the
Defendants as parties to the First Action, and to assert claims against the Brownstone Plaintiffs
and the Defendants for: (1) fraud in the inducement; (2) fraud; (3) negligent misrepresentation;
and (4) fraudulent omission. See Exhibit C attached to Defendants’ Motion. The Motion was
scheduled to be heard on August 7, 2014. Id. Moreover, the Sunridge Parties attempted to
withdraw the Offer of Judgment made to the Brownstone Plaintiffs but were unable to do so as
pursuant to NRCP 68, the Offer of Judgment may not be withdrawn within the initial ten days
of its service.

On July 24, 2014, before any opposition to the Sunridge Parties Motion to Amend was
due from the Brownstone Plaintiffs, and before Sunridge Parties’ Motion to Amend was heard
by the Court, the Brownstone Plaintiffs accepted the Offer of Judgment. See Exhibit D attached
to Defendants’ Motion.

On September 3, 2014, a Notice of Entry of Order of Dismissal of Action with Prejudice
was filed in the First Action. See Exhibit E attached to Defendants’ Motion.

On October 8§, 2014, the Sunridge Parties filed their Complaint in the instant matter
against Defendants, alleging causes of action for: (1) fraud in the inducement; (2) fraud; (3)

negligent misrepresentation; and (4) fraudulent omission (the “Second Action”). Understanding
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the intent and scope of the Offer of Judgment in the First Action, the Sunridge Parties did not
include The Brownstone Plaintiffs as a party to the Second Action. Because the Sunridge
Parties never had an opportunity to pursue, and could not have pursued, their claims against the

Defendants in the First Action, the claims are not barred by the doctrine of claim preclusion.
I11.
ARGUMENT

A. The Sunridge Parties’ Claims Are Not Barred By The Doctrine Of
Claim Preclusion.

The doctrine of claim preclusion, only bars a subsequent action if the following elements
are satisfied: (1) the parties or their privies are the same; (2) the final judgment is valid; and (3)
the subsequent action is based on the same claims or any part of them that were or could have
been brought in the first case. Five Star Capital Corp. v. Ruby, 124 Nev. 1048, 1054, 194 P.3d
709, 713 (2008). In order for claim preclusion to apply under Nevada law, the two claims must
be based on the same “cause of action.” Executive Mgmt., Ltd. v. Ticor Title Ins. Co., 114 Nev.
823, 963 P.2d 465, 473 (1998) (per curiam) (internal quotation marks and citation omitted.)
Here, the claims asserted by the Sunridge Parties in the Second Action are not based on the
same claims alleged by the Brownstone Plaintiffs in the First Action. Additionally, the
Sunridge Parties’ claims against Defendants could not have been brought in the First Action.
Accordingly, the Sunridge Parties’ claims are not barred by the doctrine of claim preclusion.

1. The Defendants Are Not Privies As It Relates To Their Own
Fraudulent Actions.

In order to meet the first element of the claim preclusion test, Defendants must establish
that “the parties or their privies are the same.” Five Star Capital Corp, supra, 124 Nev. at 1054,
194 P.3d at 713 (2008). While the Brownstone Plaintiffs and the Defendants may have been
privies with regard to a breach of contract action, they are not with regard to the fraud actions
asserted in this action. Corporate agents and individuals are separately liable for their own
fraudulent actions. See e.g. Semenza v. Caughlin Crafted Homes, 111 Nev. 1089, 1098, 901
P.2d 684, 689 (1995) (“An officer of a corporation may be individually liable for any tort which
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he commits, and, if the tort is committed within the scope of employment, the corporation may
be vicariously or secondarily liable under the doctrine of respondeat superior.”); see also Nev-
Tex Oil and Gas v. Precision Rolled Products, 105 Nev. 685 (1989) (“An agent who
fraudulently makes representations is liable in tort to the injured person although the fraud
occurs in a transaction on behalf of the principal.”).

The claims against the Defendants are based upon each Defendant’s separate and
individual liability for the fraudulent acts as set forth in the Complaint. Further, the individual
liability under the tort theories has no connection with the Brownstone Plaintiffs’ claims that
there was a contract between them and the Sunridge Parties.

2. The Facts Essential To Maintain The First Action Are
Significantly Different From The Facts Essential To
Maintain The Second Action.

“[IIn order for a subsequent suit to be barred under claim preclusion, the subsequent suit
and the first suit must arise from the same cause of action. The Nevada test for identical causes
of action is whether the sets of facts essential to maintain the two suits are the same.” Taylor v.
Merscorp, Inc., 2012 WL 4361026, *5 (D. Nev. Sept. 21, 2012) (citing Clements v. Airport
Auth. of Washoe County, 69 F.3d 321, 328 (9th Cir. 1995) (citation omitted)); see also Matter of
Firsching’s Estate, 94 Nev. 252, 254, 578 P.2d 321, 322 (1978) (citation omitted).

More specifically, the Nevada Supreme Court has explained the “same cause of action”
test:

“The true test of identity of ‘causes of action,” as that term is used
in connection with the plea of former adjudication, is the identity
of the facts essential to their maintenance. . . . The authorities agree
that when the same evidence supports both the present and the
former cause of action, the two causes of action are identical. . . .”
Silverman v. Silverman, 52 Nev. 152, 169-70, 283 P. 593, 598
(1930) (Coleman, J., concurring). Thus, if appellant's claim is
based upon evidence of new and independent delinquencies, there
can be no such identity. Where claims arise at different times out
of the same transaction, a judgment as to one or more of such
claims is no bar to a subsequent action on the claims arising
thereafter. Albuquerque Broadcasting Co. v. Bureau of Revenue,
54 N.M. 165, 216 P.2d 698 (1950).
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Round Hill Gen. Improvement Dist. v. B-Neva, Inc., 96 Nev. 181, 606 P.2d 176, 178 (1980).
Identity of claims under Nevada law has also been described as “one right” and “one wrong”:
“The test of a cause of action for res judicata purposes is the identity of facts essential to
maintain the two suits; if the facts show only one right of the plaintiff and one wrong by the
defendant involving that right there is only one cause of action.” In re Estate of Firsching, 94
Nev. 252, 578 P.2d 321, 322 (1978) (quoting Bissell v. Coll. Dev. Co., 89 Nev. 558, 517 P.2d
185, 187 (1973)).

Here, the facts essential to maintain and support the claims asserted by the Sunridge
Parties in the Second Action against Defendants are significantly different than the facts that the
Brownstone Plaintiffs relied upon for the claims that the Brownstone Plaintiffs asserted against
the Sunridge Parties in the First Action. The First Action was a breach of contract lawsuit filed
by the Brownstone Plaintiffs against the Sunridge Parties. To maintain a cause of action for
breach of contract, a party must establish: (1) the existence of a valid contract; (2) a breach by
the defendant; and (3) damage as a result of the breach. Brown v. Kinross Gold U.S.A., Inc.,
531 F.Supp.2d 1234, 1240 (D. Nev. 2008) (citation omitted). Meanwhile, the Second Action is
a fraud lawsuit filed by the Sunridge Parties against the Defendants. To maintain a claim for
fraud, a party must establish: (1) defendant made a false representation; (2) defendant knew or
believed that the representation was false at the time that it was made; (3) defendant intended to
induce plaintiff to act or refrain from acting based upon the misrepresentation; (4) plaintiff
justifiably relied upon the misrepresentation; and (5) plaintiff sustained damages. Barmettler v.
Reno Air, Inc., 114 Nev. 441, 446, 956 P.2d 1382, 1386 (1998).

Given the difference in the elements that must be proven to succeed on a breach of
contract claim compared to the elements that must be satisfied to succeed on a fraud claim, the
set of facts necessary to maintain the two suits differs greatly. This is especially true here,
where the First Action was filed against the Sunridge Parties, and the Second Action was filed
by the Sunridge Parties against the Defendants, who were not parties to the First Action, for

fraudulent actions Defendants committed in their individual capacity. Because the set of facts
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essential to maintaining the two actions are not the same, the Sunridge Parties’ claims are not
barred by the doctrine of res judicata. Round Hill Gen. Improvement Dist., supra.

3. The Claims Asserted By The Sunridge Parties In The Second
Action Could Not Have Been Asserted In The First Action.

The third element for claim preclusion is that the subsequent action must be based on the
same claims or any part of them that were or could have been brought in the first case. Five
Star, 124 Nev. at 1054, 194 P.3d at 713. In support of their assertion that the Sunridge Parties’
claims are barred by the doctrine of res judicata, Defendants maintain that the claims asserted
by the Sunridge Parties in the Second Action could have been brought in the First Action.
Specifically, Defendants’ Motion states that “Mendenhall’s Motion to Amend in the First Case
seeking to assert the same claims now brought in the case at bar, clearly demonstrates that the
claims in this case could have been brought in the First Case.” See Defendants’ Motion at p. 9.

Despite Defendants’ claims to the contrary, the Sunridge Parties could not have asserted
their claims against the Defendants in the First Action. In an effort to resolve the First Action,
the Sunridge Parties served an Offer of Judgment on the Brownstone Plaintiffs on July 10, 2014
based upon the Sunridge Parties’ knowledge and understanding of the facts at that time.
Pursuant to NRCP 68 and NRS 17.115, after service, an offer of judgment is irrevocable for a
period of ten (10) days. In other words, after the Sunridge Parties served The Brownstone
Plaintiffs with the Offer of Judgment, the acceptance period for the Offer of Judgment remained
open until July 24, 2014, and the Sunridge Parties could not withdraw the offer made to
Brownstone Plaintiffs.

On July 14, 2014, while the acceptance period for the Offer of Judgment remained open,
the Sunridge Parties deposed Tassinari. It was during Tassinari’s deposition that the Sunridge

Parties learned for the first time of Defendants’ and the Brownstone Plaintiffs’ fraudulent acts.

Accordingly, on July 22, 2014, the Sunridge Parties filed a Motion for Leave to Amend to add
Defendants as parties to the First Action and to assert claims against The Brownstone Plaintiffs
and Defendants for: (1) fraud in the inducement; (2) fraud; (3) negligent misrepresentation; and

(4) fraudulent omission. However, before the Motion to Amend could be heard by the Court,
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the Brownstone Plaintiffs accepted the Sunridge Parties’ Offer of Judgment, and the First
Action was dismissed. Due to the timing of the service of the Offer of Judgment and the nature
of the testimony elicited at the Tassinari deposition, the Sunridge Parties could not have
asserted the causes of action raised in the Second Action in the First Action. In order to be able
to assert those claims in the First Action, the Sunridge Parties would have had to obtain leave of
the court, and due to acceptance of the Offer of Judgment, the Court never considered the
Motion to Amend.

4. The Sunridge Parties’ Claims Against The Defendants Were
Not Compulsory Counterclaims.

In arguing that the Sunridge Parties’ claims are barred by the doctrine of res judicata, the
Defendants are essentially claiming that the Sunridge Parties’ claims were compulsory
counterclaims. NRCP 13(a) governs compulsory counterclaims and provides:

A pleading shall state as a counterclaim any claim which at the
time of serving the pleading the pleader has against any
opposing party, if it arises out of the transaction or occurrence
that is the subject matter of the opposing party’s claim and does
not require for its adjudication the presence of third parties of
whom the court cannot acquire jurisdiction.

(Emphasis added).

The purpose of NRCP 13(a) is “to encourage swift adjudication of claims against the
same parties in one action.” United Factory Furnishings Corp. v. Alterwitz, 2012 WL 2138115,
*2 (D. Nev. June 13, 2012) (citing Great W. Land & Cattle Corp. v. Sixth Judicial Dist. Court,
86 Nev. 282, 285, 467 P.2d 1019, 1021 (1970). “The general rule is that a claim must have
matured before it will be subject to the compulsory counterclaim rule.” Id. (quoting Bennett v.
Iid. & Deposit Co. of Maryland, 98 Nev. 449, 453, 652 P.2d 1178, 1181 (1982)). “A
counterclaim that would have been based in an action but occurred after the serving of the
defendant’s answer is not a compulsory counterclaim.” Id. (citing Madsen Const. Corp. v.
Riverside County Mortg. & Loan Co., 71 Nev. 356, 358, 291 P.2d 1056, 1057 (1955). Pursuant
to FRCP 13(a), a claim is “mature” when it has accrued for statute of limitations purposes. Id.
at *3 (citing Cabrera v. Courtesy Auto, Inc., 192 F.Supp.2d 1012, 1015 (D. Nebr. 2002).
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Other jurisdictions take a similar view of the compulsory counterclaim rules. See
Allan Block Corp. v. County Materials Corp., 239 F.R.D. 523, 529 (W.D. Wisc. 2006) (citation
omitted) (“[E]ven when a counterclaim meets the same “transaction or occurrence” test a party
“need not assert it as a counterclaim if it has not matured when the party serves [its] answer.”);
Allen v. Martin, 203 P.3d 546 (Colo. App. 2008), cert. denied, 2009 WL 501890 (Colo. 2009)(A
party need not assert a compulsory counterclaim unless it has matured at the time of the
responsive pleading, even if it arises from the same transaction or occurrence described in the
complaint.). “Implicit within this requirement, however, is the knowledge that one has a claim
against the opposing party. Certainly Rule 13(a) cannot be construed to require a party to file as
a compulsory counterclaim a claim which it does not know it has.” Sho-Me Motor Lodges, Inc.
v. Jehle-Slauson Const. Co., 466 So0.2d 83, 90 (1985); Stines v. Satterwhite, 294 S.E.2d 324, 328
(N.C. App. 1982) (citation omitted) (“Where a cause of action, arising out of the transaction or
occurrence that is the subject matter of the opposing party’s claim, matures or is acquired by a
pleader after he has served his pleading, the pleader is not required thereafter to supplement his
pleading with a counterclaim.”).

As set forth above, the Sunridge Parties did not learn of the Brownstone Plaintiffs’ and
Defendants’ fraudulent acts until Tassinari’s deposition on July 14, 2014, which was long after
the Sunridge Parties served their Answer in the First Action. As such, the Sunridge Parties
could not have brought the claims that they are asserting in this action at the time of filing their
Answer in the First Action. See NRS 11.190 (the cause of action shall be deemed to accrue
upon the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake.)

The Sunridge Parties were not aware of Defendants’ fraudulent actions at the time of the
filing of their Answer in the First Action. In fact, the Sunridge Parties only became aware of
Defendants’ fraudulent actions on July 14, 2014, the date of Tassinari’s deposition. Thus, the
claims asserted in the Second Action had not accrued until such time. Id. Because the Sunridge
Parties’ claims against the Defendants had not arisen at the time of serving their Answer in the
First Action, the claims are not considered compulsory counterclaims. Stines, supra (Trial court

did not err by denying defendant’s motion to dismiss plaintiff’s action for failure to assert claim
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for construction defects as a compulsory counterclaim in prior related actions between the
parties, where the construction defects had been discovered subsequent to the time plaintiff’s
answer was filed in the related matters.)

Moreover, NRCP 13(e) addresses situations like the present action, where a
counterclaim matures after the filing of a pleading. Specifically, NRCP 13(e) provides:

A claim which either matured or was acquired by the pleader
after serving a pleading may, with the permission of the court, be
presented as a counterclaim by supplemental pleading.
(Emphasis added).

In other words, where a cause of action arises after a party has plead in a matter, the party may
seek to amend to add the newly-matured claim, but is not required to do so. And, if an existing
party to a lawsuit can file a subsequent lawsuit against the same party to address the newly-
acquired cause of action, then surely a new lawsuit can be initiated to assert a newly-acquired
cause of action against someone that is not a party to the current lawsuit. Thus, Defendants’
attempt to expand the doctrine of res judicata beyond its intended purpose and to bar claims that
could not have even been asserted in the First Action is directly contrary to the Nevada Rules of
Civil Procedure, and cannot be permitted.

5. NRCP 11 Prevented The Sunridge Parties From Asserting
Their Claims Against Defendants And The Brownstone
Plaintiffs In The First Action.

In order to allege a cause of action, a party must have a good faith basis for doing so.
NRCP 11. Specifically, NRCP 11(b) provides, in pertinent part:

By presenting to the court (whether by signing, filing, submitting,
or later advocating) a pleading, written motion, or other paper, an
attorney or unrepresented party is certifying that to the best of the
person’s knowledge, information, and belief, formed after an
inquiry reasonable under the circumstances, -

(2) the claims, defenses, and other legal contentions therein are
warranted by existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for the
extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the
establishment of new law;
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(3) the allegations and other factual contentions have evidentiary
support or, if specifically so identified, are likely to have
evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further
investigation or discovery . . . .

As set forth above, the Sunridge Parties were not aware of the Defendants’ fraudulent
acts until Tassinari’s deposition on July 14, 2014, i.e. after their Offer of Judgment had been
served. Upon learning of the Defendants’ wrongful conduct, the Sunridge Parties promptly
moved to add the Defendants as parties to the First Action and to allege fraud claims against the
Brownstone Plaintiffs and Defendants. Before the Court could hear the Sunridge Parties’
Motion to Amend, however, the Brownstone Plaintiffs accepted the Offer of Judgment,
preventing the Sunridge Parties from being able to pursue the fraud-based claims in the First
Action.

The Sunridge Parties, however, could not have asserted fraud claims against the
Defendants prior to the Tassinari deposition because they did not have a good faith basis for
doing so, and would have been in violation of NRCP 11. Accordingly, the Sunridge Parties’
claims should not be barred by the doctrine of res judicata.

Moreover, if the Court finds that the Sunridge Parties’ claims are barred by the doctrine
of res judicata, this will only encourage parties to plead all possible claims, in fear of losing the
opportunity to pursue a cause of action, regardless of whether a good faith basis for raising the
claim exists. Such conduct, however, would be in direct contravention of NRPC 11.

B. Equity Requires That The Sunridge Parties Be Allowed To Pursue
Their Fraud Claims Against Defendants.

Res judicata is an equitable doctrine that is designed to prevent a multiplicity of lawsuits
between the same parties where the facts and issues are the same. Murneigh v. Gainer, 685
N.E.2d 1357, 1363 (Ill. 1997). “Res judicata promotes judicial economy by preventing
repetitive litigation and [additionally] protects parties from being forced to bear the unjust
burden of relitigating essentially the same case.” Arvia v. Madigan, 809 N.E.2d 88, 97 (Ill.
2004). The doctrine of res judicata is not meant to become the tool of inequitable or unjust

results. See e.g., Kopp v. Fair Political Practices Commission 905 P.2d 1248 (Cal. 1995); City
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of Sacramento v. State of California, 785 P.2d 522 (Cal. 1990). Equity dictates that the doctrine
of res judicata will not be technically applied if to do so would create inequitable and unjust
results. City of Chicago v. Midland Smelting Co., 896 N.E.2d 364 (Ill. App. Ct. 1st Dist. 2008);
Best Coin—Op, Inc. v. Paul F. llg Supply Co., 545 N.E.2d 481, 489 (1989). Res judicata should
not be applied by this court where it would be fundamentally unfair to do so. Nowak v. St. Rita
High School, 757 N.E.2d 471, 477 (1ll. 2001). The doctrine should only be applied as fairness
and justice require. Best Coin—Op, 545 N.E.2d at 489.

As set forth above, at the time that the Sunridge Parties learned of Defendants’ and the
Brownstone Plaintiffs’ fraudulent acts, an Offer of Judgment was pending. Despite their
wishes, the Sunridge Parties could not withdraw the Offer of Judgment. The Brownstone
Plaintiffs accepted the Offer of Judgment before the Court heard or decided the Sunridge
Parties” Motion to Amend’, thereby preventing the Sunridge Parties from being able to pursue
their fraud claims against Defendants. Due to the timing of service of the Offer of Judgment
and the Sunridge Parties learning of the Defendants’ fraudulent conduct, equity requires that the
Sunridge Parties be allowed to pursue their fraud claims against the Defendants in the Second
Action. The Second Action is against parties that were not parties in the First Action, and only
for their independent fraudulent actions perpetrated against the Sunridge Parties. Long v. TRW
Vehicle Safety Systems, Inc. 796 F.Supp.2d 1005 (D. Ariz. 2011) (Claim preclusion doctrine did
not apply to bar claims asserted against seatbelt manufacturer in products liability action arising
out of single-vehicle rollover accident, since manufacturer was different party than seat belt
manufacturer named in first suit arising out of accident, and first suit produced no final
judgment on merits with respect to claims asserted against manufacturer.)

Moreover, “[t]he purpose of the doctrine [res judicata] is to ‘relieve parties of the cost
and vexation of multiple law suits [sic], conserve judicial resources and, by preventing
inconsistent decisions, encourage reliance on adjudication.”” Taylor, 2012 WL 4361026 at *3

(quoting Allen v. McCurry, 449 U.S. 90, 94, 101 S.Ct. 411 (1980) (internal citation omitted)).

' The Offer of Judgment was accepted before any Opposition to the Motion to Amend was due. Undoubtedly,
Brownstone would have vehemently opposed the Motion to Amend had Brownstone not accepted the Offer of
Judgment or had an Offer of Judgment not been pending at that time.
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Any judgment obtained by the Sunridge Parties against Defendants in this action will not result
in inconsistent decision obtained in the First Action. In fact, the judgment in this action will
have no bearing whatsoever on any decisions made in the First Action.

Iv.
CONCLUSION

For the forgoing reasons, this Court should deny Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss in its
entirety, as the claims alleged by Sunridge Parties in the Second Action are not barred by the

doctrine of res judicata.

DATED this 24" day of February 2015.
HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC

[s/ Gwen Rutar Mullins

GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 3146

WADE B. GOCHNOUR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6314

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Ste. 1000
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiffs Robert L. Mendenhall
and Sunridge Corporation
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CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE

I do hereby certify that on the 24" day of February 2015, I served a copy of the
PLAINTIFFS’ OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS on all parties
listed in the Master Service List in accordance with the Electronic Filing Order entered in this
matter.

James J. Lee, Esq. — james @leelawonline.com
Harry Marquis, Esq. - harry@marquislaw.net

/s/ Kellie Piet
An employee of Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC
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AFFIDAVIT OF ROBERT L. MENDENHALL

STATE OF NEVADA )

} ss.
COUNTY OF CLARX. )

I, ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, being first duly sworn, depose and state:

H

i T am over 18§ vears of age, a resident of the State of Nevada, and competent to

1 testity to the matters contained in this Affidavit, which are based upon my personal knowledge, |

excepl as to those matters that are based upon my information and belief. As to those matters, |
believe them to be true,

2. This Affidavit is given in support of Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Defendants’
Motion to Disiniss.

3. On either December 4 or December 5, 2007, a Carson Valley Casino Project
Term Sheet (the “Term Sheet”) was executed by American Vantage Brownstone, LLC
(“AVB"), Brownstone Gold Town, L’LC, “Other Investor(s)” and me.

4. The Term Sheet pmvidés in pertinent part:

This term sheet shall serve as an outline of the basic business terms
and conditions upon which Brownsione GoldTown, LLC
(“Brownstone GoldTown”), a subsidiary of American Vantage
Brownstone, LLC {*AVB”), Robert L. Mendenhall, Ph.D., or an
entity wholly-owned by Mr. Mendenhall (“Mendenhall”), and
other polential equity investor(s) (the “Other Investors™), will
acquire membership interests in the Nevada limited Uability
company, Brownstone GoldTown CV, LLC (the “Company”) for
the primary purpose of constructing, owning and operating a hotel
casino to be located in Carson Valley, Douglas County, Nevada
{the “Project™).

5. The Term sheet further provides in relevant part:

The Project membership interests (the “Membership Interests” will
be allocated based on the following:

Page 1 of 3
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e For contribution of the 46-acre project site, value at
$15,000,000, Mendenhall will receive a 27% Membership
Interest. The acreage will be contributed in full on or
before the option expiration date of December 27, 2007 or
as mutually agreed between Brownstone GoldTown and
Mendenhall,

¢ It is expected that the Other Investor(s) will coniribute
$7,000,000.00 U.S. Dollars for a 12.6% Membership
Interest,

s Brownstone GoldTown will contribute $1,500,000.00 U.S,
dollars for a 2.7% Membership Interest,

6. 1 was told by Ronald Tassinari (“Tassinari”} and Robert Gross that they had 2
Canadian group of equity investors that would be committing to contribute $7,000,000.00 to
acquire a 12.6% Membership Interest in Brownstone GoldTown CV, LLC, and that the
Canadian group would also be signing the Term Sheet,

7. In reliance on these representations, [ signed the Term Sheet, and returned the
Term Sheet to Tassinari and Mr. Gross on Decamber 5, 2007,

&. That same day, December 5, 2007, a fully executed copy of the Tenmn Sheet was |
faxed back to me, with all of the signature lines completed,

9. T was never told that the Canadian group did not sign the Term Sheet,

10. 1 was never told that Tassinari signed the Term Sheet as the “Other Investor(s),”
rather than the third party Canadian group that [ had been told would be the “Otiher Investor{s).”

11, T was also never told that despite signing the Term Sheet as the “Other
Investor(s)” that Tassinari had no expectations or intent of contributing $7,000,000.00,

12, It was my understanding that it was the Canadian group that had signed as the

“Other Investor{s).”
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13, In signing the Term Sheet T relied on those representations and would not have
signed the Term Sheet had T known that those representations were false and untrue and that
there was no third party investor group who would be committing to contribute $7,000,000,00.
I was misled to believe that the Canadian group had signed the Term Sheet and would be
committing to contribute the $7,000,000 to this project.

14,  Prior to Tassinari’s deposition, 1 was not aware that Tassinari signed the Term
Sheet as the “Other Investor(s).”

15,  Additionally, prior to Tassinari's deposition, I was not aware of the fraudulent |
actions and omissions that were perpetrated against myself and Sunridge Corporation by the
Defendants, as alleged in the Complaint in this action,

Further your affiant sayeth naught,

DATED thisdU ffi’?day of February, 2015,

ROUERT L. MENDENHALL

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO

before me thisSULhday of February, 2015,

L Ny
_N.;E{,m’} C%Mi" -&if,(‘:-,{ _
NOTARY PURLIC il shl for
said County and State.

SR BTATE OF NEVADA
4B16-4568-7585, v. 2 ey County of Glark
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AFFIDAVIT OF WADE B. GOCHNOUR
STATE OF NEVADA )

) 38,
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, WADE B. GOCHNOUR, being first duly sworn, depose and state:

1. 1 am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and [ am one of
the counsel of record for Plaintiffs, Sunridge Corporation and Robert L. Mendenhall
{collectively, the “Sunridge Parties”).

2. This Affidavit is given in support of Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Defendants’ |
Motion to Dismiss.

3. At the time of filing of their Answer in Case No. A-11-653822-C (the “First
Action™), the Sunridge Parties were not aware of the fraudulent actions of Defendants that are
the subject to this action. Defendants were not parties in the First Action.

4, On July 14, 2014, the deposition of Ronald Tassinari (“Tassinari”) was
conducted. During Tassinari’s deposition, Tassinari testified: (1) that he had signed the Term
Sheet that was the basis for the contract claims in the First Action, signing on behalf of the
“Other Investor(s)” and on behalf of AVB; and (2} that he had no expectation to invest
$7,000,000 as set out in the Term Sheet. See excerpts of Tassinari’s Deposition Transcript
attached as Exhibit 1.

5. Prior to Tassinari’s deposition, the Sunridge Parties were unaware that Tassinari
had signed the Term Sheet as the “Other Investor(s).”

6. Prior to Tassinari’s deposition the Sunridge Parties believed that the signature

contained for the “Other Investor(s) was that of the Canadian Investor.
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| $7,000,000.00 to the deal as stated in the Term Sheet. Tassinari testified that he did not expect

7. During the depositions of Anna M. Morrison on July 6, 2014, and the deposition
of Robert F. Gross on July 11, 2014, both representatives of the Brownstone Plaintiffs, both
witnesses testified that they believed that the signature for “Other Investor(s)” was that of a
Canadian investor who was also looking inte investing in Brownstone Gold Town CV, LLC.
See excerpis of the deposition of Anna M. Morrison, attached as Exhibit 2. See also excerpts of
the deposition of Robert F. Gross, attached as Exhibit 3.

8. Once Tassinari testified that he had signed the allegedly binding Term Sheet on

behalf of the “Other Investor(s),” Tassinari was asked if he expected to contribute

to contribute $7,000,000.00 as stated in the Term Sheet. See Exhibit 1.

9. Prior to Tassinari’s deposition, the Sunridge Parties were not aware of the
fraudulent actions and omissions that were perpetrated against them as alleged in the Complaint,
and therefore no affirmative claims were asserted against Brownstone or Tassinari and AVB
when the Sunridge Parties filed their Answer to the Complaint in the First Action,

Further vour affiant sayeth naught.

DATED this 20" day of February 2015,

W/’&DEB GOC EINOUR

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO

jz \§ “W 21< XA
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for
said County and State.

“Holary Pubiic - Siate of Nevada
X County of Clark
KELLIE PIEY
3 Appt. No, 02-74888-1
v Anpt. Expires January 21, 2018

Page 2 of 2

0133



0134



1 DISTRICT COURT
2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
3
4
5
}
& BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN, LLC, a H
Nevada limited liability company,)
7 BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN ¢V, LLC, a
Nevada limited liability company,!
8 3
Plaintiffs, }
9 }
Vs . } Case No. A-11-653822-C
10 ;
ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an 3
11 individual, SUNRIDGE CORPORATIOCN,}
A Nevada corporation, and DOES 1 i
1z through 190, inclusive, 3
}
13 Defendants. 3
1
14
15
16 VIDEQCTAPED DEPOSITICN COF RONALD J. TASSINARI
17 Las Vegas, Nevada
18 Monday, July 14, 2014
19 Volume I
20 |
21
22 Reported by:
BARBARA R. JUSTL
23 SR No. 878
Jopb No. 1884788
24
25 PAGES 1 - 2696
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DISTRICT CCURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

)
BROWNSTONE GOCLD TOWN, LLC, a )
Nevada limited liability cowmpany,)
BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN CV, LLC, a |}

Nevada limited liability company, )

)
Plaintiffs, )
)
v ) Case No
\

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an
individual, SUNRIDGE CORPORATION,)

-

A Newvada corporation, and DOES 1 )
chrough 10, inclusive, )
)

Defendants. )

)

Videotaped Deposition of RONALD J.

Hughes Parkway, Suilte 1000, Las Vegas, Nevada,

at 9:11 a.m. and ending at 5:28 p.m. on Monday,
2014, befors BARBARA R. JUSTL, Certified Shorthand

Reporter No. 878.

A-11-653822-C

TASSINART,
Volume I, taken on behalf of Defendants, at 3800 Howard

beginning

e

§77-955-3835



APPEARANCES:

For Plaintiffs:

18

19 |

20

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD.

By: HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, Attorney at Law

400 South 4th Street, Third Floor
Lag Vegas, Nevada 89101
{(702) 382-6700

harrv@marguislaw.net

For Defendants:

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS, PLLC

By : WADE B. GOCHNOUR, Attorney at Law

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000

Las Vegas, Nevada 8216898
(702) 257-1483

whgeh2law.com

Alsoc present:

James M. Barker, Esqg.
General Counsel

Las Vegas Paving Corp.

Videographer:

MARX STATES, VERITEXT
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Q Okay. Any other contracts that you feel have been
breached, or any other <¢laims that vou think voulre
making in this lawsuitc?

MR. MARQUIS: Object to thse form of the guestion.
THE WITNESS: To me, it's a simple breach of
contrac
BY MR. GOCHNOUR:

o] Okay. And I just want to ke sure that this is
A Yeg.

o] -~ #thig® being Exhibit 1, is the contract that
we'lre talking about,

A Yes, sivr.

Q That you guys -- the Brownstone entities ars
claiming that there was a breach of, correct?

A Correct.

o] Okay. And if I could have you turn back to page

5, please, the fifth page of the exhibit, the signature

And there's a signature for American Vantage

Brownstone LLC.

A Yes.

Q Is that your signaturs?

A Yes.

Q Are you familiar with Mr. CGross's signature?

10:01

10:

Pags 37

<
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A Locks like his.

o] And was My. Gross the chief executive officer of
Brownstone Gold Town, LLC?
A He was.

Q I'm gorry, in December of 20077

A Yes,

Q And then there's the other investor. Can you tell
me whose signature that is?

A Looka like mine.

Q Looks like yours. Why would you have bszen the
other investor in thisg agreement?

A You know, I don't remember, but that is definitely
my signature.

Q Well, were vou committing te put $7 million into
this project as of Dscember 4, 20077

A I did not make a commitment to put $7 million into
this project on December 4, 2007.

Q Can you please tell me why you signed on behalf of
other investors?

A T can't tell you today. I don't remember.

Q Did you think signing on behalf of other investors
had any legal consegquences to you?

A Never really thought about it.

Q 8o you didn't think signing as an other investor

in an agreement that you're claiming is a binding

10:02

106:02
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

g N

& BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN, LLC, a i
Nevada limited liability company,!
7 i PBROWNSTONE (GCLD TOWN CV, LLC, a )}

Nevada limited liakility company,

Plaintiffs,

9 i
VS, ¥ Case No. A-11-653822-C
10 j
ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an )
i1 individual, SUNRID3E CORPORATION, )
A Nevada corporation, and DOES 1 )
12 through 10, inclusive, )
}
13 Defendants. i
}
14
15
1 VIDEQTAPED DEPOSITION OF ANNA M., MORRISON
17 Las Vegas, Nevada
18 Thureday, July 3, 2014
12 Volume I
29
21
22 Reported by:
BARBARA R. JUSTL
23 CSR No. 878
Job No. 1884749
24
25 PAGES 1 ~ 239
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWNW, LLC, a i
Nevada limited liability company,)

BROWNESTONE GOLD TOWN CV, LLC, a |}

Nevada limited liability company, )

2w}
}.—1
j&i]
F ']
)
(9
i_J-.
4
n
o}

ROBERT 1, MENDENHALL, an
individual, SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, )

v

A Nevada corporation, and DOES 1 )

through 190, inciusive, )

Defendants, )

Videotaped Deposition of ANNA M. MORRISCN,
Volume [, taken on behalf of Defendants, at 2800 Howard
Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000, Las Vegas, Nevada, beginnin
at 9:00 a.m. and ending at 4:28% p.m. on Thursday, July 3,

2014, bhefore BARBARA R, JUSTL, Certified Shorthand

Reporter No. 878,

\' “ni"xi National Deposition & Litigation Services
77-955-3855
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PPEARANCEES
For Plaintiffs:
HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD.
By s HARREY PAUL MARQUIS Arvtorney at Law
400 Scuth 4th Street, Third Floor
Lag Vegas, Nevada 82101
harrv@marqguislaw.net
**al’ld**
CLAGGETT & SYKES Law FIREM
By SEAN K. CLAGGETT, Attorney at Law

8751 Wesgt Charlieston Boulevard, Suite 200

Ul

{702} 635-2346

For Defendants:

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS PLLC

o}

Yo WADE B, GOCHNOUR, Attorney at Law
3800 Howard Hughes Parkwasy, Suite 1000
Las Vagasg, Nevada 83169

{702} 2537-1463

whg@nllaw.com

Videographex:

TOM BURTNEY, VERITEXT

Veritext ’\htmnai Dcpo:jxtmn & Litigation Services
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lawsuilt that was

fiiad by

Brownstons Gold Town CV.

A Yeas.,

nat

Q Do you know wi

Towr

Town and

action?

A My unders

and frow information

breached the agreement

" And that's your

understanding of the

againsgt My, Mendenhall

4

g
@
0

Do you know of
here
A ia

the spe

|y memory.

Q And when vou say

Mandenhall breached the

calking abkout?

A There was a binding

approximately the end of

Brownstons and a

vMendenhall,

Q Do recall the

youl

gee the
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BY MR, GOUHNOUR.

G Mg. Morriscon, I'm showing vou what's titled the

“Carzon Valley Casinoe Project Teym Sheet.® I

take a s=cond to look throuvgh and than tell wme 1f vou

raecognize this documani.

MR, MARQUIS: What's t axhibit number?
MR . GOCHENOUR: 1.
THE WITNESS: {(Witneas compliss.) Yes,
BY MPE. GUOCHNCGUR:
< So thiz is the agreswsol tThat you were talking
aboul ?
A Yea, it doea appear to bs, ves,

You'lre back on the signature pags vight now,

Pl
0

Y148

03:18

Q and that is -~ it has a Little mark down at the

o And it seems that it's signsed by American Vantage

A Correact,

d Town, LLC?

[t
G2
&

Q And Brownstone
A Corrent,

Q and Mr. Mesandenballls signatu

5]
o
=

5
]
o
fo
o
i)}

signature on it?

<
w0
B
fas)

Yeritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
877-G55-385S
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o

2 i and then it says "Other ilavestor." Do yvou know

3 whe That other investor is?

4 A it's

rd to rwead, isn't it. T don't know.

g 0 Do you know who any other potential invsestors wers

hoof 20077

o

& sbout Decembesy 4
7 A At that time, we were talking with a Canadian
2 JTOUR .

G Q Do you have any -- was

10

an individual?

a group? Was it

A They had a contact person. His name was Robert D920

:\J
0]
i
=]

13 o Wow, I know itis been a long time since vou've

14 orobably sesn this, but what laagguage in this agreemsnt 0%:21

15 makes ‘

g a binding

,
[o))
3
-
h

4
s}
o
¢
9]
C‘
B3
@

the signature page -~

i-y O Dy re
18 A - on the paragraph at the fop of ths page, the

A AVIRT s To SN -Tot

b

18 last sentence, “shall bs binding upon any

Ny
<

3, ¥ 038:21
21 Q Let wme ask you, during your bime at American

dealing with Brownstone, was this a

form that you entered intce in ovder to

- n .. . i PR
24 8 a gheet 09.:21

A We woulid have had lstters of intent which would

377.955-3855

0147



&3

587

o

o

8

@O

p)

a4

ME . GCCHNOQUR: Can we mark the next two in oxd

n
[ad

& marvked. ) i

o
jont
&2

7 marked.}

BY MR. GOCHNOUR:

zon, I'm showi

] Ms . Mory Wy you two -- theylye

unaigned, but they're two separste Carson Valley Casine

project term sheets, and I hope you wan look those over

and tell ms whather they lock familiar to you or not,

)

3 Well, they would have -- they ars likely to have

een prepared internslly at American Vantags Companies.

=

zparad 18012

{

o] Would this -- do yvou know 1f these were prv

pefore, after, conte

0

ranecusiy with Exhibiv 17

A Well, this one hazs a date of January 20, 07,
] Itm gorry Lo stop you, but when you say "thisg

one, " dust soe we can figure out which exhibit -~

A gxhibit 7. 1013

A Has a date on it of -~~~ dit's blank, but Januvary
blank, 2007. That would appesar to precede the term
sheet. The ciher one has no dats, =50 I gan't -~ I dam'ts
know when it was drafted.

Q Gn Exhibit 7, down at the laast page, down in the

signature blocks, Robert Simse 10:13

and Richard Coglon. Do vou koow who Robert Sims is7?

B Robert Sim was -- I refsrred to him

877-955-3855
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I feel like I
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3 should know that name, but I just don’t remembex

4 spscifically who he is. I'w suve 1'11 remembsy Lt about 10:14

5 2 o'olock this morning,

- o~ o]

5 ] and during 2027, do you know, were there term

7 sheets beilng provided to oth

[e¥]

investoers in the Sold Town project?

5

9 A 07, I weould have to actually ses the docguments 10:14

10 to e able to tell vou for sure, but I would havs thought

that ait ls=ast discussicns. I don't know 1f -- I don't

o

12 remember 1f they got to the lsevel of 8 term sheet.

13 Q Wow, ths Canadian investors, weve they the othar

stors that signed term shest that’'s Exhibit 17
i85 A As I mentionsd, I don't recognize that signature

18 that's there.

17 Q Qkav.

A Go ¥ can't asgsert that that's definitely who it 10:15

9

wag of who signed it

Q But vou don't have any rscollection of discussions

21 about who the other investor was?

T

22 A The other ionvestor that there weve discussions

with was the Canadian group.
24 o Tim sorry, could I have you look back at

2% Exnikic 17

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
R77-855-3855
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2 Q Yeas,
3 A Th-huh.
4 & gecond pags, top item says, "It is expeciasd the 10:18

Gther Investora will contribute $7 million U.S. for a

6 12.6 percent Membership Intayrsst.”

7 Does thar refresh vour recollestion as to whether

8 1  the other invasshor was the Canadian group vou're talking

kﬂ
u

:bhout?

11 2 it doez refresh vour vecollection?

12 A I do bs eve the othey investor was the Canadi:

13 7 grou

T,

Q Okay.

A I dust den't know who the

ief that -- the teru 10:16

et

G Ckav. And is it your bs

17

i

zet was binding on all the parties that aigned it,
18 right?

18 A Correact.

20 G inciuding Mr. Mendenhall?

s A Yas.

27 Q Including Brownstons?

23 A Yea.

o And American Vantage?

R A Yes.

H

Page &5

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
§77-955-3855
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A
L

5

Companies did net sign this term shset, Amsrican Vantage

do vou recall any other potentidal investors that

My,

in Gold Town?

Gross or Mr. Tassinarl wave talking to in 2007 about

Gold Town proje

And the othey investor

orrect, I do want to clarify., Amevican Vantags

<
st
[ea]

fot

-~ which wasg a subzidiary, wholly owned.

Not the sawms Thing?

Not L thing, just to clarify.

No, I appreciate b Thank vou.

~ M~

Cther than the Canadisn group and Mr. Mendenhsll,

£?

[}

3
You'ld have to address that question to them. 10217

I'w just asking, you don't recall any?

Now the Canadian group, did they

OW QF
How 07

Did they invest any money in Gold Towa?

They -- we entered intoe -- yves, the answer iz

What did they invest into thes Gold Town group =« 10018
the Gold Town proisch, excuse me?

There were three promisscry note

i}

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
T7-955-3858
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I, the undersigned, a Certified Court Reporter of
the State of Nevada, do hereby certify:

That the foregoing proceedings were taken before
me at the time and place herein set forth; that any

oYy Lo

[

witnesses in the foregoing proceedings, pr
testifying, were duly sworn; that a reccrd of the
proceedings was made by me using machine shorthand which
waz thereafter transcribed under my direction; that the

ng transcript is a true record of the testimony

(=8

forego
given.

Further, that before completion of the
proceedings, review of the transcript [ 1 was [XX] was
not requested.

I further certify I am neither financially
interested in the action nor a relative or employes of
any attorney or party to this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, I have this date

subgcribed my name.

Dated: July 17, 2014

BARBARA R. JUSTL, RPR

CCR No. 878

e
o
o]
Y
&2
s
¥e]

| | Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
877-955-38535
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BROWNSTONE GCOLD TOWN, LLC, &

Nevada limited liability company,!
BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN CV, LLC, a )
Nevada limited liasbility company,)

)
Plaintiffs, )
VS, y Case No., A-11-86
}
ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an )
individual, SUNRIDGE CORPORATION,)
A Nevada corxporation, and DOES 1}
through 10, inclusive, i
}
Defendants. 3
]
VIDREOTAPED DEPOSITION CF ROBERT F. GROSS
Laa Vegas, Nevada
Friday, July 11, 2014
Volume I
Reported by:
BARBARA R. JUSTL
CSR No. 878
Job No. 1884784
PAGES 1 - 261

53822-C
Fage 1

77-955-3855
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DISTRICT CQURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
)
BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN, LLC, a )

Nevada limited liability company,)
BROWNSTONE GOLD TOWN CV, LLC, a )

Nevada limited liability company,)

)
Plaintiffs, )
)
ve. y Case No, A~-11-653822-C

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an
individual, SUNRIDGE CORPORATION,

)
)
}
A Nevada corporation, and DOES 1 )}
through 10, inclusive, )

)

)

Defendants.

Videctaped Deposition of ROBERT F. GROSE,
Volume I, taken on behalf of Defendants, at 3800 Howard
Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000, Las Vegas, Nevada, beginning
at 9:18 a.m. and ending at 6:20 p.m. on Friday, July 11,
2014, before BARBARA R. JUSTL, Certified Shorthand

Reporter No. 878.

Page 2

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
877-953-3855
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APPEARANCES
For Plaintiffs:

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD.

By: HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, ttorney at Law

400 Scuth 4th Street, Third Floox

Las Vegas, Nevada Bal101
(7¢2) 382-8700

harrv@marguislaw.net

For Defendants:

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS, PLLC

at Law

By WADE B. GOCHNQUR, Attorney
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Lag Vegas, Nevada 89169

(702) 257-1483

whgah2law.com

Alsc present:
James M. Barker, Esg.
General Counsel

Las Vegas Paving Corp.

Videographerxr:

KENNETH LAURSEN, VERITEXT

Page 3

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
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facsimile or email transmisgsion®™ ~-

THE REPORTEER: I'm sorry?

MR, GOCHNOUR: Speak up and slow down. I'm sorry.

w
[
2

THE WITNESS: -- ®ghall be significant (sic) fox

all purposes and shall be binding upon any party who SO

BY MR, GOCHNOUR:
Q and so that seantence is what you belisve makes
this & kbinding contract?

A Correct.

Q And vou'rs on the signature page still, correct?

A Yes

v Wwho is the other investor who signed this?

A I can't see the zignature here. The investior »» 10:18
believe that iz American Vantage or signad by American
Vantage.

@ You're still on the signature page, <orrect?

A Uh-huh, ves, correct.

Q The top signature is American Vantage Brownstone,
LLC?

A Uh-huh.

Q Yes?

A Yesg.

Q And vou think that the bottom one that says "Othex

Page 28

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
877-955-3855
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[

3
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i

#.

Investori{s)," is also American Vantage? 10:18
A To the bast of my knowledge, yes. It loocks like

the same signature. I can't resad this copy that wall,

but --

"] Okay. Well, let me ask you, as of December 4th,

2007, what other investors did the Brownstone sntitiles

h

have signed on for this

s

roject for the Gold Town Casino 10:13
project?

A Other investors would be Bob Sim from Canada.
Qther investors would be -- would be sntities through Bob 10:18
Sim, whether it's Level 10 or whatever entity he would
come in with who agresd to parvticipsate.

Q Was there a separate term sghest or other document
signed between the Brownsztone entities and Bobk Sim or one

of hig entities?

{

A We had loan documents through Level 10 for
approximately a million dollars towards the project. We 10:20
had a term sheet for Bob S8im, but right now I can't -~ I
just don't remember, I'd have to leook in my documents.

Q Well, you loocked in yvour documents to prepare as a

A0 {b) {68} representative today, correct?
A Correct.

Q And do vou recall seeing a tsrm sheet that was

(]

120

ever signed by Bob Sim or one of his entities? 1

A No.

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
877-955-3855

0158



in

-1

<

[

e
W

[38]
[]

21

Q And can I have you turn to the second page of the
term sheet, please. Let me ask vou -- let me back up a
saecond first.

With regard to that othsy investor signature, if

1]

vou don't recognize who that is, would there be somebody
else who would have more knowledge than you as to who
that might be?

A T don't know. I wouid have to get a better copy

than this and -~ covporate mavbe.

Q When you say corporate, who would that be?
A Mr. Tassinari or -- who was in the corporate
office.

Q We'lrs going to take just a second te adiust vour
microphone so the videographer can hesayr what you're
saying.

And are vou aware of any other signed term sheets

other than Exhibit 17
A No.
Q And just sc we've clear, when I say any other, I

mesan betwean Brownstone sntities and any other potential
investor, not just ancther one with Mr. Mendenhall or
Sunridge or anything like that. Just are there any cther
signed terw sheests that vou're aware of relating to the

Gold Town Caszin

o

project?

th
Y]
o
£u
W

A As Brownztone entity that I was in charge

.

&

10:21

jont
]

Np

&

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
877-955-3858
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o Is thers a term sheet yvouw're awars of that relates

0o & non-Brownstone entlty that vou're in charge of?

A Mot to my recollection. 1022
Q Okay. I just want to be sure becauss you seemed

to make a differentiation.

A wWell, there i3 a diffevence, because I ran
Brownstone., I was noh in corporate. £o American
Vantage, I don't Know.

Q On page 2, the first bullet on the top of that

Q ~~ 1t says, "It is expectad that the other

investors will contribute $7 wmillion UW.3. dollavse for a

(]

12.8 percent wewmbership interest.” 10:23

B

Doss that help you recall who the cother investors

werey
A The othsy investor would be Bob Sim.
Q Recause Bob Sim was signed on to contribute

27 wmillion to the Gold Town Casino projectt®

A Fob Sim committed 7 milliiecn ovx

]

NOre .,

Q And just g0 I'm clear, does that tell you that Bob

gim is the other investor rather than American Vantags,
or you're not sure?
A I'm not sure on the signature.
Pags 41
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Q But you recall that Bob Sim had committed 1¢:23
&7 million to ths project?

G What was that $7 millicn to be
A Az sguity into the projsct
Q Bui it wasn't juast going to sit

a5 squity,

gouathing, corrsct?
A Correct,
project.

Q What waa that portion

project going to be ussad for?

Developnant of the projsct.

3

ke pre-development,

peie

Q L

All of the above.

] and as of December 4th, 2007

buginess terms that still

the Brownstone entitiss, My

0

it was actually going to be used for

of the sguity To

Pre-devaelopnmant and

., wer
had to be worksd out

Mendenhall,

ged fox?

hank account

in oa

16:24

That wag the portion of eqguity we needad

move the

actual wonstruction, what?

construction.

=
[
[3S]
(%]

thers any
betwean
ather

and the

10:25

investor in order to make this proisct go?
A Rusiness terms?
¢} Yes.,
A There needsd to be an i

finalized,

Q Okay.
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1 little conflict here, I thought you testified during the
2 period of August 1, 2007, to September 27, 2007, you 13:35
3 didn't present any term sheeis to Mr. Mendenhall. But
4 now vou're sayving that he insisted on this binding
5 language which is in this agreement --
) A Uh-huh.
7 Q -~ in this draft that waszs drafted between August
2 1, 2007, and Rugust 27, 2007. So you're saying he asked
& for that, even though vou weren't giving him ferm szheests
10 at that time. Is that what vou're testifying?
11 ME. MARQUIS: I'm going to object to the form of
12 | the question. That mischaracterizes his testimony.
13 BY MR. GOCHNQUR:
14 o] If I've mischavacterized your testimony, please, 13:35
1= I'm trying to corvech it so I know what you're saying.
16 P2y I'm trving toe get the dates corwect. All I can
17 reunember is we had kinding -- binding -- the term shest
18 was binding, and we put it in for the Canadians. We also
19 put it in ~- and Mr. Mendenhall wanted binding agreement.
20 That's all I can say. I mean, I can't remember any more.
21 I mean --
22 Q The binding ~- the Canadians were the other
23 inveators in the Bxhikit 1 term sheset, right?
24 A Yes.
25 Q Okay. And it was binding ~- that term zsheet was 13:36
Fage 1190
Veritext N auomiﬁepoxxtxon & Litigation Services
77-955-3858

0162



8]

-3

[5¢)

P

§t

-2

-

o

s

(&)

)

b2
o

A Qf course, 13:36
Q Okay. an I have vou turn to the part of Exhibit
89 that is RROW-9868. Can vou tell me when this term 13:38
shset was drafted? 13:38
A I awm looking at the dates below, but they don't

corvespond with the term sheet.
Q Okavy.
A This term sheet was procbably automatically updated

aach time we used it and corrected it, so I dontt know --
whoever did the term sheet, how thelr computer changes 13:38
the dates on it.

Q But on page 1, which is BROW-9368, the bulleb
point at the very bottom says, "For each $1 million of
Contributed Capital, Investor will receive a 1.8
Membership Intevest.”

Now, that occurred bscause that was a term that
My . Mendenhall demanded somewhere in vour negotiations,
right?

A Corract.

Q And you then presented it to other poetential

investors on that basie? 13:38
A After we were in agreeance (sic) with Mendenhall,

yes.
G Turning to the next pags, the top bullet point, it
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A He propably -- I don't know what percentage he
owned of i1t, but he had invested some money in Level 10,
and he said that, vou know, look for them for the
millicon-and-a-half, but look foxr me for the 7 to
25 million.

G Okavy. S0 was Bob Sim, again, the other investor
that's listed in the term szsbeel who was --

A Yealh.

Q -~ going to contribute $7 million?

a That's wheo was in mind when we did the term sheet,

absolutely. 15:44

Q And again, I don't understand how it came that
Level 10 is talking about $7 million. This isn't an
additvional 7 million, this is in place of that 7 wmilliien,
right?

2 No. No. Well, it would be in place of it, but
thay would look and do it themselvas. You know, you've

got to remember Bob was only an investor in Level 10.

Ralph was a little greedy CPA that would borrow from Bob,

and Ralph wanted to do it himself, but he just didn't 15:

have the capacity. 8o we really didn't look to him for
the 7 million. It was alwavs Rok 8Sim, alwavys.

Q Then why are vou writing a note, whethsr it
actually got sent or just to yourself, that says that "We

do understand that you may nesd some time on the

Page 174
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1 have Bob. BEob was -- like I said, he was the staple

2 because he lived here, he already had a gaming license,

3 he had the land value. We didn't have to do anything if

4 we kept Bob in as a partnerxr. 17:22

5 But the fact he didn't contribute the land, we

6 | lost a lot of smaller investors. Bob Sim is the one that

7 stuck with us for awhile., He stayed committed.

8 Q Cn the term shest, there was Bob Mendenhall.

9 A Uh-huh.

19 Q There was RBrownstone. There wae the possibility

il of the Sunridge Golf Course, and there was the other

12 investor, which I thought we've established was Bob Sim

i3 for 87 million. 17:22

14 A Bob Sim was the other investor.

15 6] Yeg.

16 A We only needed the 7 milliion.

17 Q Okay. So why were we still talking to othex

18 potential Canadians about additional money being

19 invested?

290 A 1f we wanted to do the wholes job, we needed more

21 eguity.

22 Q But you had dscided to cap out the eguity at

23 25 million.

24 A Corract. But yvou always have backups. You know,

25 any project vou have a backup. And depending on the 17:22
Page 227
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1 0O And who were the other investors who were
2 concerned?
3 A The Canadians.
4 Q Which Canadians are we talking about?
5 A Bob Zim and his group.
a o And they were concarned? 17:43
7 A Yes.
8 Q Were they still committed to investing the
G 25 million to buy the property if Mr. Msndenhall wasn't
10 in in that pericd?
11 A Oh, in that period?
12 o In the Decewmber 4, 2007, to April 8, 2008 period.
13 A Well, he was in, 80 there waasn't a need for the
14 2% million, so the discussion was a moot issue.
15 Q Ckay. After you rscelved Mr. Mendenhall's letter, 17:43
18 did you go back to Mr. Sim and say, "Are vyou atill
17 willing te invest the 25 million?”
i8 A Yes.
18 @] And what was his response?
20 A He was still -- he was still interested in
21 investing himself. He said hes would have to get back
22 with the Germang and sse Lf they were, g0, vou know --
23 and that went on for wmonths and months. 8o we loocked for
24 different investment, different eguity.
25 ¢ Mr. Sim never came in with $25 million, correct? 17:44
Bage 235

Veritext National Deposition & Litigation Services
877-955-3855

0166



~3

[o4]

Nx
0

-

I, the undersigned, a Certified Court Reporter of
the State of NVevada, do hereby certify:

That the foregoing proceedings were taken before
me at the time and place herein set foxth; that any
witnesses in the foregoing proceedings, prior to
testifying, were duly sworn; that a record of the
proceedings was made by me using machine shorthand which

was thereafter transcribed under my divection; that the

foregoing transcript i

2]

a true record of the testimony
given,

Further, that before completion of the
proceedings, review of the transcript [ 1 was [XX] was
not requested.

I further certify I aw neither financially
interested in the action nor a relative or employee of
any attorney or party to this action,

IN WITNESS WHERECF, I have this date

gubscribed my name.

3

Dated: July 22, 2014

{

BARBARA R. JUSTL, RPR

CCR No. 878
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RIS
JAMES J. LEE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 01909

Legal Offices of James J Lee
2620 Regatta Drive, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
Telephone (702) 664-6545
Email: jamesi@leelawonline.com

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 001252

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHTD.

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada, 89101

Telephone (702) 382-6700

Email: harry@marquislaw.net

Attorneys for Defendants Ronald Tassinari
And American Vantage Brownstone, LLC

DISTRICT COURT

Electronically Filed
03/10/2015 11:51:41 AM

R

CLERK OF THE COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ROBERT L. MENDENHALL, an individual,

SUNRIDGE CORPORATION, a Nevada
Corporation,

Plaintiffs,

V.

RONALD TASSINARI, an individual,
AMERICAN VANTAGE BROWNSTONE,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company,
DOES 1 through 5, inclusive and ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 through S, inclusive,

Defendants.

M’ N S N N N N N N N S N N N N N

Case no.: A-14-708281-C
Dept. no.: XXXII

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF
DEFENDANT’S MOTION
TO DISMISS

Date of Hearing: March 17, 2015
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m.

COMES NOW, Defendants by and through their counsel James J. Lee, Esq. and Harry

Paul Marquis, Esq. and submit their Reply in Support of Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss

REPLY RE MOTION TO DISMISS - 1
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pursuant to NRCP 12(b)(6) and/or NRCP 56 on grounds that this action is barred by the
doctrine of claim preclusion.

Defendant’s Reply is made and based on the following points and authorities, all
pleadings and papers on file herein and any and all arguments the court may entertain upon
hearing.

DATED this /@7 day of March, 2015.

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, CHARTERED

HARRY PAUL MARQUIS, ESQ~—
Nevada Bar no. 1252

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Tel. No.: (702) 382-6700

Fax No.: (702) 384-0715

Email: harrviemarquislaw.net
Attorney for Defendants

In Association with:

JAMES J. LEE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 01909

Legal Offices of James J Lee
2620 Regatta Drive, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
Telephone (702) 664-6545
Email: jamesiwleclawonline.com
Attorney for Defendants

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
A. Introduction
This action is an attempt by Plaintiffs, Robert Mendenhall and Sunridge Corporation,
(hereinafter both referred to as “Mendenhall”) to revive a case that was dismissed with

prejudice in August of 2014. That case was styled Brownstone Gold Town LLC v. Robert

REPLY RE MOTION TO DISMISS - 2
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Mendenhall et al, A-11-653822-C (“First Case”). In the First Case, Brownstone Gold Town,
LLC and Brownstone Gold Town CV, LLC (“Brownstone Plaintiffs”), sued Mendenhall for
breach of contract and unjust enrichment in connection with the contract—referred to as a “term
sheet”—which is attached as Exhibit 1 to the Complaint on file herein. After years of litigation,
Mendenhall made an offer of judgment and the Brownstone Plaintiffs timely accepted it.
Consequently, the District Court entered an order dismissing the case with prejudice, fully
discharging and releasing the parties with respect to any and all claims alleged as well as any
related or potential claims that could have been alleged.

Now, Mendenhall has singled out Ronald Tassinari (“Tassinari”) an officer and
managing agent of American Vantage Brownstone LLC (AVB), the owner of the Brownstone
Plaintiffs, as well as AVB itself, to assert claims grounded in the same transactioﬁs that gave
rise to the First Case and which indeed he tried to assert in that case before it was settled and
dismissed with prejudice.

As a matter of law, a dismissal with prejudice is just that, it permanently bars all claims
that were brought, or that could have been brought, in the dismissed action. Since Mendenhall’s
claims in this case are based on the same core transactions which gave rise to the First Case and
could have been brought in that case, and since Tassinari and AVB were and are privies fo the
Brownstone Plaintiffs in the First Case, this action is barred.

B. Admissions of Mendenhall in Plaintiff’s Opposition

In their Opposition, Plaintiff’s Robert L. Mendenhall (“Mendenhall”) and Sunridge
Corporation (“Sunridge”) (collectively the “Mendenhall Parties”) admit that: 1) Mendenhall
was the first to sign the Term Sheet; 2) Mendenhall signed the Term Sheet containing no other
signatures; 3) that Mendenhall returned the Term Sheet signed only by Mendenhall to the

REPLY RE MOTION TO DISMISS - 3
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Brownstone Plaintiffs; and 4) that Mendenhall subsequently received a copy of the Term Sheet
with all signatures. Mendenhall’s affidavit attached to Plaintiff’s Opposition states in pertinent
part as follows:

“... I signed the Term Sheet, and returned the Term Sheet to Tassinari and Mr.

Gross on December 5, 2007.

8. That same day, December 5, 2007, a fully executed copy of the Term Sheet

was faxed back to me, with all of the signature lines completed.”

There is no question that Mendenhall did not sign the Term Sheet in reliance upon any

existing signatures on the Term Sheet because it is undisputed that Mendenhall signed the

Term Sheet first.

Mendenhall’s affidavit attached to Defendant’s Motion to Amend in the First Case
contains verbatim the same language quoted above from Mendenhall’s affidavit attached to
Plaintiff’s Opposition. Mendenhall’s affidavit attached to Defendant’s Motion to Amend in the
First Case also specifically identifies the Term Sheet he signed and returned as Exhibit 1 to said
Motion to Amend. A copy of Exhibit 1 to the Motion to Amend is attached hereto as Exhibit
“F” and contains bates numbers from the First Case of MEN00670-MEN00674 identifying the
document as being produced by the Mendenhall Parties (the “Undisputed Term Sheet”).

Defendants respectfully ask the Court to closely examine the signature page of the
Undisputed Term Sheet (MEN00674) particularly in regard to the signatures of American
Vantage Brownstone, LLC, which was signed by Ronald Tassinari, Chairman, and the signature

for Other Investor(s). The signature of Ronald Tassinari for American Vantage Brownstone,

LLC is extremely distinctive and is the same signature for Other Investor(s). The_affidavits of

REPLY RE MOTION TO DISMISS - 4
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Mendenhall admit that Mendenhall had possession of the Undisputed Term Sheet (Ex. F) on

December 5, 2007.

Plaintiffs argue that they could not have brought the claims they attempted to assert in
the First Case through their Motion to Amend, and which they have asserted in this case,
because the claims did not accrue until Plaintiffs’ “discovery” of the fact that Mr. Tassinari

signed the Undisputed Term Sheet in the Other Investor(s) signature block. However, what

Plaintiffs fail to acknowledge, and what Plaintiffs cannot escape, is that Mendenhall admits

that Mendenhall had possession of the Undisputed Term Sheet (Ex. F) on December 5, 2007.

Mendenhall’s admission that he was in possession of the Undisputed Term Sheet since
December 5, 2007 irrefutably demonstrates that Plaintiffs discovered, or should have
discovered, that Mr. Tassinari signed the Undisputed Term Sheet in the Other Investor(s)
signature block.

In their Opposition, Plaintiff’s argue that at their depositions in the First Case both
Robert F. Gross and Anna M. Morrison were unable to identify the signature in the Other
Investor(s) signature block of the Term Sheet. However, Plaintiffs fail to disclose to the Court
that the Term Sheet presented to Mr. Gross and Ms. Morrison at their respective depositions
was not the Undisputed Term Sheet, but was a much less clear copy of the Term Sheet which
was marked as “Exhibit 1” to both depositions and which contained bates numbers from the
First Case of BROW00267-BROWO00272 (the “Deposition Term Sheet”). A copy of the
Deposition Term Sheet is attached hereto as Exhibit “G”. It is undisputed and admitted by
Mendenhall that Plaintiffs had possession of the clear and distinct Undisputed Term Sheet since
December 5, 2007, that Plaintiffs produced the Undisputed Term Sheet as MEN00670-
MENO00674 in the First Case, and that Plaintiffs had possession of the clear and distinct

REPLY RE MOTION TO DISMISS - 5
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Undisputed Term Sheet at the time of the depositions of Mr. Gross and Ms. Morrison in the
First Case.

Contrary to the assertions in Plaintiff’s Opposition, Mendenhall admits that Mendenhall
signed the Term Sheet first when no other signatures were present and that on December 5,
2007 Mendenhall had possession the Undisputed Term Sheet which plainly shows that Ronald
Tassinari signed the Undisputed Term Sheet both on behalf of American Vantage Brownstone,

LLC and for Other Investor(s).

ARGUMENT
1. This Case is Barred by the Doctrine of Claim Preclusion.

The doctrine of claim preclusion provides that a final judgment on the merits bars
further claims by parties or their privies based on the same cause of action or operative facts.
Five Star Capital Corp v Ruby, 124 Nev. 1048, 194 P3d 709, 713 (2008). The Nevada Supreme
Court has established a three-part test for determining whether claim preclusion applies: “(1)
The parties or their privies are the same; (2) the final judgment is valid; and (3) the subsequent

action is based on the same claims or any part of them that were or could have been brought in

the first case.” (Emphasis Supplied) /d at 710.
a. Defendants Ronald Tassinari and American Vantage Brownstone
LLC are Privies of the Plaintiffs in the First Case.

Defendants Ronald Tassinari and American Vantage Brownstone LLC were and are
privies to the Brownstone Plaintiffs in the First Case. Privity exists when a person is identified
and shares a commonality of interest with another. See Headwaters Inc. v. U.S. Forest Serv.,
399 F.3d 1047, 1054 (9th Cir.2005). The focus of the inquiry regarding privity is whether the

party in the later action was “sufficiently close” to the party in the first action so as to justify
REPLY RE MOTION TO DISMISS - 6
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applying preclusion principles. Clemmer v Hartford Insurance Co. 22 Cal .3d 865, 151 Cal
Rptr. 285, 587 P.2d 1098, 1102 (Cal.1978).

Plaintiff’s argument in their Opposition that the fact corporate officers or agents could
be liable for torts committed within the course and scope of theirs duties does not mean privity
does not exist for purposes of claim preclusion pursuant to Five Star Capital Corp. See Bloom
v Claimetrics Management, 2011 U.S. Dist. Lexis. 75841 (Nev. 2011) (Since defendants in
second case were managing agents, members and owners of defendant limited liability company
in first case, they were privies for purposes of claim preclusion.)

Here, Defendant American Vantage Brownstone LLC (AVB) is the owner of both
Brownstone Plaintiffs, Brownstone Gold Town, LLC, and Brownstone Gold Town CV, LLC. In
fact the Term Sheet, attached as Exhibit 1 to the Complaint herein, specifically identifies
Brownstone Gold Town, LLC as a subsidiary of AVB as follows:

“This term sheet shall serve as an outline of the basic business terms and

conditions upon which Brownstone GoldTown, LLC (“Brownstone GoldTown”),

a_subsidiary of American Vantage Brownstone, LLC (“AVB”), Robert L.

Mendenhall, Ph.D. or an entity wholly-owned by Mr. Mendenhall
(“Mendenhall”), and other potential equity investor(s) (the “Other Investor(s)),
will acquire membership interests in the Nevada limited liability company,
Brownstone GoldTown CV, LLC (the “Company”) for the primary purpose of
constructing, owning and operating a hotel casino to be located in Carson Valley,

Douglas County, Nevada (the “Project”).” (Emphasis Supplied)
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